
Joint Select Committee on Collective 
Bargaining 

Senator Hays, Co-Chair 
Representative Van Zant, Co-Chair 

Meeting Packet 
Materials Submitted by: 

Bargaining Units 

Monday, February 16, 2015 
10:30 AM 

Webster Hall (212 Knott) 



Federation of 
Public Employees 



FEDERATION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES 
A Dil'irirm o( the Nt~tiollal Fcdcrctl/1111 af P11hltr .md Prwntt: Emfilfl)'i~J 

An t\ffillate of Dim·ict 1- M ari11e EntJIIt:<'I"J Bcmfiri,,J AmriniiOJJ { MEBA ), ( AFL-C /{)I 

DANIEL 0 . REYNOLDS 
D1v!sion Presiden1 

February 9, 2015 

Representative Charles Van Zant, Co-Chair 
Government Operations Subcommittee Room 218 
House Office Building 
402 S. Monroe Street 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 

ANTHONY MARCIANO 
Division Secretaryfrreasurer 

Sent via U.S. Mail and e-mail to: Charles.Vanzant@myfloridahouse.gov 

Dear Representative Van Zant, 

For the past ten (10) years the Federation of Public Employees has negotiated with the 
Florida Lottery bargaining unit for a three (3) percent increase to the base salary of the 
lottery employees. This increase was never approved. 

We are currently negotiating again regarding this issue. I would appreciate if you would 
look into this matter and assist in acquiring this three (3) percent increase for the lottery 
employees. 

Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at my office at 
954-797-7575 or on my cell phone at 954-648-6894. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Sincerely, 

Jack Marziliano 
Business Representative 

Enclosure 

1700 N.W. 66th Avo:nut * Suite 100 * Fort Lauderdale, Florida 3))13 * Office (95~) 7'}7-757S * bx {954) 7'-17-2'1!.2 

.... :a. 



• 

Section 1: 

Florida Lottery 
Proposals 

ARTICLE 12 
WAGES AND PAY PLAN 

(A) Effective July 1, 2015 all bargaining unit employees shall receive a three (3) 
percent increase to their base salary. 



"'TT 
z 
):> 



J~w Ojjice~ o/ 

cf/esnicJ li Caser, J:J::P 
2 70 1 PONCE: O E U::O"' BOULE:VI\RO 

SUIT£ C! OO 

F A X 130'51 4 4t'>·S685 

I t.L \305' 448 567 > 
.JAMES C C ASEY 

~LOR.OA 8UPAI!"MC COUA1' 

OONi'ILI'> 0 . S t.ES NICK II 
C t:lltT H "IC:O IN l.A8 0 R & (MPLOYMCNT LAW 

C. CRT II' ItD C IFCCI.J IT COURt MCOIATON C CRTtriE:O C.I III'CUtT COURT H:EOIATOA 

donslonniClk C soup. com 

Senator Alan Hays 
Co-Chair 
Joint Select Committee 

February 13,2015 

)lmcasey@ sdlp.com 

Representative Charles VanZant 
Co-Chair 
Joint Select Committee 

Re: Hearing Before the Joint Select Committee on Collective Bargaining
Florida Nurses Association and State of Florida 

Dear Senator Hays and Representative VanZant: 

This office represents the Florida Nurses Association (FNA) which, as you are aware, is the certified 
collective bargaining agent for the heaJth care professionals employed by the State. 

The FNA has received the February 91
h notice of the statutorily-mandated impasse hearing scheduled for 

Monday, February 16, 2015. Said notice was issued long after the .FNA and the State had set the next 
collective bargaining session for February 17111 (the day fo llowing the hearing). In that the FNA 's 
representatives had already confirmed travel schedules to and from Tallahassee- attending your hearing 
is fi nancially impossible for the Nurses involved. 

Presently, the FNA is in the midst of negotiations with the Governor (through DMS), and is hopeful that 
the bargai ning will not reach a final " impasse" (as that term is commonly understood in the fi eld of labor 
relations). Therefore, the FNA does not intend to present a specitic position on the open issues at this 
time, but reserves its statutory rights to pursue an equitable resolution to such an impasse, should that 
occur at a later date. 

The FNA does not take exception to the "open" issues listed in Mr. Michael Mattimore's February 41
h 

"Notification of Collective Bargaining Impasse" sent from the Department of Management Services to 
the Senate President and the House Speaker. Of utmost importance is the compensation level of the 
health care professionals. It has been years since these faithful public servants have had the consideration 
of much-needed wage adjustments to be competitive with the j ob market and to track the cost of living. It 
must be recognized that these employees are human beings that must feed themselves and their families 
whi le paying for mortgages and transportation costs. Furthermore, the FNA would implore the legislature 
to re-visil its prior decision that privatized the health care services within the Department of Corrections. 
Such " privatization" has been destructive of the State's health care capabilities within its correctional 
facilities - a fact which has been highlighted by recent public revelations of poor hea lth care and inmate 
deaths. FU11hermore, the supposed ''savings" was based on " low-ball" bids which did not accurately 
portray the rea 1 cost of health care. 



Senator Alan Hays 
Co-Chair 
Joint Select Committee 
February 13, 20 I 5 

Representative Charles Van Zant 
Co~Chair 

Joint Select Committee 
February 13, 201 5 

As the Legislature moves forward into its 2015 session, the FNA urges all members of the Senate and the 
House to consider carefully the needs of their state-employed health care professiona ls. Registered 
Nurses, Advanced Registered Nurse Practitioners, Pharmacists, Community Health Nurses, 
Psychologists, Dentists and Nutritionists are critical providers of the State's mandated services to its 
citizens and its wards. These professionals are in short supply and the demand for their talent is high. 
While the FNA appreciates the stressful financiat-situation in which the State found itself jn past years; it 
must strongly suggest that now that the State' s budget has greater fiscal capacity - there are special 
considerations facing the health care professional employees which must be assertively addressed sooner 
rather than later. Whether or not the Governor's budget responds to those needs; the legislature should 
certainly do so, 

The FNA thanks the Committee members for their service jn such an important capacity which, in the 
end, we hope will help create productive results for all concerned. 

cc: Deborah Hogan, RN., State Unit President, by e-mail: Deborahhogan@flhealth.gov 
Jeanie Demshar, Esquire Director of Labor Relations, FNA: jdemshar@floridanurse.org 
Joint Select Committee, Via John Love by e-mail: John.Love@myfloridahouse.gov 
Michael Mattimore, Esquire, Attorney for OMS: mmattimore@anblav.,.com 

Claire Whitley, H.R Consultant, DMS: claire.whitlev@dms.myflorida.com 

2 



, 
V\ , 
V\ 
)> 



Febuary 13. 2015 

FLORIDA STATE FIRE SERVICE ASSOCIATION 
IAFF Local S-20 

3433 Lithia Pinecrest Rd #347 
Valrico, Florida 33594 
www.iafflocals20.com 

(863) 661~019 

Joint Select Committee on Collective Bargaining 

Re: Florida State Fire Service Association Collective Bargaining Impasse 

Dear Committee Members. 

* ~tit~ 
'' -~J 

As you aware. an impasse has occurred between our Association and the Department of Management 
Serv ices on our contract issues. I would like to let you know who we are and what we do for the state of 
Florida and the people li ving here: 

The Florida State Fire Service Association ( FSFSA) is comprised of state employees .frum.five differenr 
state agencies specializing infire protection. 

Firefighters from the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services Florid11 Forest Service. 
Forestry .firefighters provide wildland fire protection, expertise with prescribed fire for private 
landowners and disaster response to the public in every county ·within the state of Florida. They also 
reRular/y provide firefighting personnel to fight wildfires all over the United States. 

Fire service personnel from the Department of Financial Services. These fire professionals include fire 
training professionals f rom the Florida State Fire College located in Lowell. Florida and Fire 
Protection Specialists assigned to the State Fire Marshal's Office. These prc~fessionals provide training 
& certification for fire service personnel from throughout the state as well as inspection of all state 
facilities around the state. In addition they provide emergenc:y disaster response teams ( R!AT) and SAR 
for the all toofrequent natural disasters thar occur in Florida. 

Firefighters from the Department of Children and Families. These structural firefighters provide fire 
and EMS services to the Florida Slate Mental Hospital in Chattahoochee Florida and surrounding area. 

Fire Protection Specialists assigned to the Agency for Health Care Administration. These fire 
professionals are responsible for ensuring the fire safety of all hospitals and nursing homes throughout 
the state. 

Firefighters f rom the Department of Military Affairs. T11ese professionals provide fi re_fighting services at 

Camp Blanding. Camp Blanding is a large National Guard base located near Stark. They also provide 
structural fire protection to the Air Na1ional Guard base located in Jacksonville. Florida. 



FLORIDA STATE FIRE SERVICE ASSOCIATION 
IAFF Local S-20 

3433 Lithia Pine<:rest Rd #347 
Valrico, Florida 33594 
www. iafflocals20.wm 

(863) 661-4019 ---- .. ........,.,'---_______ _ 
Our proposals we presented to the state this year for consideration to our contract had one simple 
mission: improve the morale of the existing workforce. Morale is at an all-time low among state 
employees. I would like to give you a brief summary of these issues and explain why we are at impasse 
and seek your assistance in resolving these issues . 

Article 13 ·Reduction in Cost of Retiree health Insurance premiums: We propose to limit the total 
cost of retiree health insurance to be a maximum percentage of an FRS members pension payments. We 
currently have people retiring drawing less in monthl y pension than the total cost for family coverage 
after retirement. 

Article 23 • Scheduling issues: Basicall y we are asking for agencies supervisors to stick to our 
scheduled work hours and if we need lO work more than the nonnal scheduled shift then either properly 
plan for it in accordance with our contract or limit excess hours in a workday to emergency response. 
People should not have to come in on scheduled days off unless there is an emergency or it has been pre
planned in advance for issues, like training. If supervisors do not adhere to this then the members 
should be compensated for accommodating the needs of the State. There should be no "extra hours .. 
above a members schedule except for emergency response. When members are required to work past 
their scheduled workday this in turn cost them money due to lost wages at part time jobs, unplanned 
childcare expenses. etc. 

Article 25 Pay: FSFSA is asking for a competitive wage analysis be completed for like positions. We 
have firefighters literally making less than half of other staning firefighters in the state, some of the 
lowest paid in the nation. This has caused high turnover in many areas of the state. FSFSA is asking for 
a $ 1500 pay increase to our members. Monies spent annually by some agencies to train replacements far 
exceeds the $ 1500 raises we are asking for to retain existing employees. Hazardous duty pay for 
members placing themselves in dangerous situations often times with limited or no protective measures 
in place for their safety. Cost of liv ing Area Differential (CAD) request are for agencies requesting 
those high turnover areas and to review existing CADS that have not kept up with area cost of livings. 
Shift differential are for the majority of our membership in an 8 hour workday scheduled from 8 to 5. If 
and when these employees are required to work evening or around the clock work FSFSA request shift 
d ifferential pays ro offset expenses usually inquired by the employee for these shifts. Many of our 
members are responsible for training their coworkers and the public by teaching classes, on the job 
training, course delivery. working on taskbooks, etc. as these duties are not part of our normal duties 
FSFSA request when these employees perform these duties and/or classified as a trainer they be 
compensated for it. I have attached one of our members W2 and simply ask could you live off of this? 

Article 26: Step pay plans. Morale in the field is at an all time low witll turnover of new employees 
increasing across the state. FSFSA proposes a step promotional system for members to "move up" to a 
higher level. Agencies could use existing salary monies. incentives, etc. to accommodate this without 
the need for additional funding from legislators. Various incentives could be utilized to different iate 
positions with in the "steps" if salary increases are not an option. Each FSFSA agency rep has suggested 
plans for implementation that can be worked with by both panics to accomplish the end goal. improve 
morale and retention. 



FLORIDA STATE FIRE SERVICE ASSOCIATION 
fAFF Local S-20 

3433 Lithia Pinecrest Rd #347 
Valrico, Florida 33594 
www .iaftlocals2ll.wm 

(863) 661-4019 

o.* 
Ftiiiilft4:iii 

• ..., _j 

FSFSA has agreed to twenty status quo anicles and six articles the state proposed changes to and 
curremly have three of the articles proposed by the state at impasse. Article six, seven. and nine we 
asked for the below changes be made. FSFSA feels all of these proposed changes to the states proposals 
can be incorporated without any negative impact to the state. 

State's proposal Article 6: we agree with everything but ask all grievances, including disciplinary. go 
to a step 3 for OMS review. As stated changing this we feel can save the state monies possibly 
resolving issues prior to going to arbitration and do not see a negative impact to the state or our 
members . 

State's proposal Article 7: memorandum of Supervision and Memorandum of Records are not 
disciplinary action and should not be in our disciplinary article so we asked for wording change or 
removal. Everything else we can agree to but would like to see that change . 

State's proposal Article 9: Many times employees see open vacancies on People First with lower cost 
of living or state owned housing provided they would like to move into. The current s ystem does not 
allow for transfers unless a form was completed prior. We asked for an additional way for employees to 
be prioritized for unanticipated vacant positions that open around the state of like positions once 
advertised. They should not be limited because of an absence of a form. 

Thank you for your time and attention on these issues. FSFSA was formed in 2002 by state employees 
previously covered by larger unions that we fel t did not have our best interest at heart. Currently we are 
the only ' 'Union'' where all of the officers are active state employees e lected by their peers. Since 2002 
each year we propose changes to our initial contract and yet to ever have one of those articles passed by 
Legislators during impasse. None! We have no political action committees, lobbyist working for u..s . or 
special interest agendas, but what we do have is an association of state employees trying to improve the 
workplace. We do not ask you to make us rich. we nsk you to help us survive and to take care of our 
families. We have members living on government assistance or in government housing. Many of our 
proposed changes have minimal or none at all impact on budgets. but they all have one thing in 
common .... They will improve morale of your employees. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Tommy Price 
Presidenli Wildland Firefighter 
Florida State Fire Service Associatjon 



SECTION l - Insurance Benefits 

Florida State Fire Service Association 
FSFSA Proposal - Article 13 

October 13th, 20 14 

Article 13 
HEALTH AND WELFARE 

(A) The state agrees to administer the State Employees Group Health Self-Insurance Plan in 
accordance with any statutory provision or Act affecting rhe plan or its operation. 

CBl Upon retirement bargaining unit members retirement monthly premiums for family 
health and/or single coverage health insurance will be adjusted based on their monthly FRS pension 
payments. Single and/ or Family premiums for health coverage will not exceed established premium 
rates or 40% of the total pension payments to the retiree. 

State Union ------ ------
Date Date ------ ------



SECTION 4 - Work Day 
(A} Staws Quo 

Article 23 

Florida State Fire Service Association 
FSFSA Proposal - Articll! 23 

October l 31
h, 20 14 

HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME 

(B) Employees will not be required to work excess hours above the scheduled work day. 
except in the event of emergency response incidents. without prior planned written approval from the 
immediate supervisor. 

(C) Any hours members are required to work over the scheduled work day hours for non
emergency response duties shall be deemed approved ovc:rtime by the supervisor. 

(0) Any hours work performed on scheduled days off shall be deemed pre-approved 
overtime hours. except in the event these hours do not exceed contracted hours due to empl oyee 
leave usage. 

(E) Emergency response incident is defined as any incident that threatens public health. 
safety, and welfare that requires immediate attention by responders. 

S tate Union - ----- --- ---
Date - ----- Date _____ _ 

.. 



Florida State Fire Service Association 
FSFSA Proposal - Article 25 

October 13th,20 I 4 

Article 25 
WAGES 

SECTION 1 - General Wage Increase for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 
( Al Based on funding in the fiscal Year 2015-2016 General Appropriations Act all 

employees in the unit shall receive a general wage increase in the amount specified by the legislature. 
(8} FSFSA rt<quest a competitive pay analysis to be completed by the agencies for all 

current position classifications covered under this agreement with like positions employed within 
the state, counties. and cities. Results of these studies shall be provided to the Speaker of the 
House and Senate President annually in the event of an impasse over Article 25 wages. 

SECTION 2 Status Quo with Fiscal year changes 
SECTION 3 Status Quo with Fiscal Y<'ar changes 
SECTION 4 Statu.~ Quo with Fiscal year changes 
SECTION 5 Status Quo with Fiscal year c:hanges 

SECTION 6- Special Pay Issues 
To reduce increasing new employee turnover and agency training expenses to new employees 

unit members shall receive a competitive pay adjustment o($1500 to each employee's June 30. 2015 
base rate of pay. 

SECTION 7 - Hazard/ Physical HardshiP Dyty pay additive 
(A) When hazardous siruations or physical hardships exist. bargaining unit members will 

receive an additional hourly pay adjustment of no less than to% ofhourly base rate per hour when 
performing such duties. Hazardous duty is defined as duty performed under circumstances which 
could result in serious injury or death. Duty involving a physical hardship is duty that may not in 
itselfbe hazardous, but could causes extreme physical discomfort or distress and is not 
adequately alleviated by protective or mechanical devices or procedures in place. 

SECTION 8- Competitive Area Differential (CAD} 
(A) Due to high rumover rate and to competiti ve market salaries for similar job duties. 

the FSFSA requests funding for critical competitive area differential in those areas agencies have 
identified high turnover and retention deficiencies. 

(B) FSFSA request existing competitive area differentials be reviewed and increased 
accordingly to adjust for competitive ''like" positions. 

State Union ----- -----Date ____ _ Date ______ , 



SECTION 9- Sbift Differential 

Florida State Fire Service Association 
FSFSA Proposal - Article 25 

October I 3th, 20 14 

Article 25 
WAGES (Continued) 

(A) Bargaining unit members will receive a shift differential of 5% of their base salary 
pay per hour for evening shift work in excess of the normal work day. 

(8) Bargaining unit members will receive a shift differential of 10% of their base salary 
pay per hour for midnight shift work in excess of the normal work day. 

(C) Evening shift hours are defined as those hours from ( 1800) 6 PM to {2400) 
Midnight. Midnight shift hours are defined as those hours from (0001) midnight to (0600) 6AM. 

(0) Shift differentials will not apply to those employees normally scheduled evening and 
midnight hours. Shift changes will be in accordance to Article 23 Section 2(8). 

SECTION 10 - Trainer pay additivt 
CAl Bargaining unit members assigned duties to provide on the job or classroom training 

to co-workers shall receive a 10% of salary pay additive provided the training is part of an 
agency approved required training program and that such duties are not part of the customarily 
assigned duties of the position classification. 

State Union ----- -----
Date Date - ---- - - ----



Article 26 
~ROMOTlONS 

SECTION I - Promotional step plan System 

Florida State Fire Service Association 
FSFSA Proposal - Article 26 

October 13th, 20 14 

(A) All Agencies employing unit personnel will establish a promotional step system 
for each classification consisting of a minimum of (4) four promotional step opportunities for said 
positions. 

(B) Promotional steps requirements will be based on but not limited to; time in service. 
training certifications. performance evaluations. and employee qualifications. 

(C) Promotional steps shall be attainable. achievable. and clearly defined steps on what 
employee requirements are needed to promote within the organization. 

(D) This systems intent is to increase employee morale. motivation. and commitment to 
improvement in the workplace. 

(E) Promotional steps shall be based on completion of requirements for promotions and shall 
not be limited to position availability or funding. Agencies will utilize existing pay bands and pay 
grades position funding to implement this system. 

State Union ------ ------
Date Date - ----- --- ---



)> .., 
1.1\ 
(') 

~ 
ITI 



ISSUES AT I MPASSE - AMERJCAN FEDERATION O F STATE,CO UNTY, AND 
M UNIC IPAL EM PLOYEES COUNCIL 79 

February 12, 2015 

AFSCME Council 79's SUMMAR Y O F T H E ISSUES 

AFSCME Council 79 and the Governor - through DMS- are negotiating a 
successor collective bargaining agreement. The current agreement expires on June 30, 
2015. Many articles were not reopened and of those opened agreement was reached in all 
but one, Article 25- Wages. 

This impasse is significant for AFSCME Council 79 and the over 48,000 state 
employees we represent due to the following: 

I. Article 25- Wages 

• Overview: State employees have did not receive an increase last year. 

• State Proposal: The State again has proposed no increases for State 
Employees. 

• AFSCME Council 79 Proposal: A 12% increase across the board and a 
Cost of Living Adjustment Section to A1ticle 25 that would mit igate 
losses/erosion of living standards of the employees. This COLA would 
increase salaries yearly with a mi11imum set at 2%1

• AFSCME Council 79 
st resses tha t this proposal was the Union 's opening bid and was 
prepared to negotia te down however it was never given an 
opport unity due to the G overnor's no increase position. 

• Argument: Florida State Employee Workforce-

1 Minimum wage workers receive a cost ofliving raise every year as well as FRS and Social Security 
pensioners. 



• Lowest ratio of all 50 states of employees full time- 93 per 10,000 in 

population [National Average - I 70] (DMS Report 2013-2014 page 

7) 

• Florida is i 11 in the nation in terms of Fastest Growing Population 

Changes (OMS Report 2013-2014 page 6) and has now become the 

third highest populated state after California and Texas (U.S. Census 

Bureau) [This does not include the number of people that visit our 

state as toUJists that state employees must service.] 

• Since 2010 to 2014 the number of state employees, full time and part 

time positions, has been reduced by 14.6% (OMS Repmt 2013-2014 

page 21) 

• Since 2013 to 2014 the number of state employees, full time and pa1t 

time positions, has been reduced by 2% (OMS Report 2013-2014 page 
21) 

• Since 2010 to 2014 the number of state employees, full time positions, 

has been reduced by 14.5% {OMS Repmi 2013-2014 page 22) 

• Since 2013 to 2014 the number of state employees. full time positions, 

has been reduced by 1.9% (OMS Report 20 I 3-2014 page 21) 

• Wage Increases vs CPl; 
Year CPf Wage Increase (decrease) 
2006 3.2 0 
2007 2.8 0 
2008 3.8 0 
2009 -.4 0 
2010 1.6 0 
2011 3.2 0 
2012 2.1 (-3% FRS) 
2013 1.5 $1 ,400.00 for those below 40.000 

base pay, $1.000.00 for those above 
2014 1.6 0 
Total 19.4 0 (The raise of2013 mitigated the 

pay-cut of2012.) 
• State Employees cannot keep sustaining an erosion in their 

standard of living/purchasing power/quality oflife as the above 
data clearly illustrates. This dedicated workforce implements, 
enforces, and maintains, the laws. policies. regulations and 
protocols, that the elected leaders have decided upon which makes 
Florida the Great State it is. A fajr increase in compensation is 
merited. 

• State Employees are shmi staffed and over worked. Currently 
when an employee comes in to cover for others during their days 
off they earn Special Compensatory Time. To use that time they 
must put in a request that must be approved by management. 
Management is not approving the use of Special Comp. Time due 

2 BuTeau of Labor Statistics; hllo:i·data.bb.gov timc~o~:rics CUUROOOOSAO 

2 



to staffing shortages thus many state employees are forfeiting their 
earned time with no recourse. The following is the data provided 
by OMS illustrating the extent to which state employees are losing 
Eam ed Comp. Time: 

Agency 
APD Persons with Dissability 
DACS Agriculture & Csmr Svc 
DCF 

hours forfeited 
II ,670 hours 
1,096 
47,495 

DJJ 
DOH 
DC Con·ections 
HSMV 
REV 
DEO 
FWC 
OVA 

10,185 
3,230 
4,222 
2,503 
731 
4,926 
3,295 
11 ,067 

Total of hours worked and lost by employees due to sbott 
staffing 100,420 in a one year period. 

Conclus ion: Fewer state employees are doing more work for lower compensation. Paying 
fair compensation and having enough emp.loyees to serve our citizens effectively is not 
expanding government but rather providing a government that the people deserve. 

... 
..) 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Jt:r·k;i · //. · ';//}N7M.J 

Hector R. Ramos, Director, 
AFSCME Council 79 Region 3 



PBA: FHP/ Law 
Enforce./Spec. Agent 



FLORIDA POLICE BENEVOLENT 
ASSOCIATION, INC. 

The Voice of Florida's Law Enforcement Officers 

February t 1, 20 l 5 

Senator Alan Hays, Co-Chair 
Representa6ve Charles VanZant, Co-Chair 
Joint Select Committee on Collective Bargaining 
Governmental Oversight and Accountability Committee 
404 South Monroe Street 
Tallahassee, F lorida 32399 

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL 

Re: Collective Bareainine Proposals of PBA for Law Enforcement Units: 
Florida Highway Patrol, Law Enforcement Officer and Special Agent 

Dear Senator Hays and Representative VanZant: 

Attached you will find the collective bargaining proposals submitted by the Florida Police 
Benevolent Association, lnc., to Governor Scott and the Department of Management Services 
covering the three Jaw enforcement bargaining units represented by the Florida PBA. The bargaining 
units are (I) the Florida Highway Patrol unit, (2) the Law Enforcement Officer unit and (3) the 
Special Agent [FDLE] unit. The proposals are submitted in legislative fashion and directed to the 
specific article and section of the contract sought to be modified by the Association. 

As an examination of the impasse letter fi·orn DMS' chief negotiator indicates, Governor 
Scott and the PBA are at impasse on two major issues, wages and the special compensatory payment 
program for the three bargaining units: The special agent unit has a third impasse issue which deals 
with court appearance time. Obviously, the most significant of these impasse items is wages. 

ln order to ass ist you in resolving the impasse, the Florida PBA offers the following 
information and comments: 

CONTACT PERSONS 

Information relating to the PBA proposals and the reasons for such 
proposals available from two primary contact persons: (a) PBA 
Executive Director, Matt Puckett, matt@ flpba.org, and (b) PBA 
General Counsel, H al Johnson, hal@tlP.ba.org. 

300 E. Brevard St., Tallahassee, FL 32301-1218 • www.flpba.org • 850.222.3329 • Toll Free: 1.800.733.3722 • Fax: 850.561.0192 



Senator Alan Hays, Co-Chair 
Representative Charles VanZant, Co-Chai.r 
Joint Select Committee on CoUective Bargaining 
February ll , 20 15 
Page 2 of3 

MAJOR ISSUES 

Wages (All Units- Article 25) ~ The Florida PBA's wage proposal is largely 
an extension of its proposals from the last two years which were adopted, in 
part, by the Florida Legislature. The overall intent of the proposal continues 
to be to establish a competitive and cohesive pay system which ensures the 
wages are competitive and fair and fmther provides an equitable pay 
differentiation in salaries between veteran and less senior officers. 

This proposal has three important components: (a) a general base salary 
adjustment consistent with that provided other state employees, (b) a special 
base salary adjustment for all state law enforcement personnel designed to 
enhance the competitiveness of such salaries, and (c) a continuing effort to 
addt"ess salary compression issues faced by the State's veteran law 
enforcement personnel. 

Special Compensatory Pay Option (SA Unit- Article 23 and FHP/LEO 
Unit-Article 18) - As the Florida Legislature is aware special compensatory 
leave and separation pay-outs for such leave are a financial issue with the 
State. This is especially true with respect to the State's Jaw enforcement 
agencies which function on a "24/7'' basis. The PBA proposal is designed to 
allow agencies to establish pilot programs providing law enforcement 
personnel immediate pay for special compensatory time eamed. 

Tl1e Florida PBA's leave payment option pmposal is extremely limited. It is 
contingent on: (a) the availability of funds, and (b) the agency head's 
discretion. It authorizes the agency to meet and negotiate with the PBA a 
plan for the payment of special compensatory leave as earned. The 
Association believes that a pay option program will permit agencies to ensure 
more of its officers are working and assisting the State's citizens once the 
program is implemented. 

Court Time (SA Unit - Article 24) - This is a very simple proposal. lt 
increases minimum court time for special agents required to attend court or 
cotut-related •·esponsibilities while off-duty. The minimum comt time is 
currently two and one-half hours. The Association proposes the minimum be 
increased to four hours. The PBA's four hour proposal is consistent with the 
minimum paid to officers in the Florida Highway Patrol and Law 
Enforcement units. 

The Voice of Florida's Law Enforcement Officers 



Senator Alan Hays, Co-Chair 
Representative Charles VanZant, Co~Chair 
Joint Select Committee on Collective Bargaining 
February ll , 20 l S 
Page 3 of3 

Thank you for your consideration of the Florida PBA 's bargaining proposals. We ask again 
that you please give serious consideration to granting your law enforcement personnel a wage 
adjustment that reflects their dedication and service to the citizens of Florida. We believe the special 
compensatory pay option proposal offers the State a unique way to test an alternative special 
compensatory leave system for possible futu re use by other state agencies. 

GHJ/dlt 

Encl(s) 

c: Michael Mattimore, OMS ChiefNegotiator 
Matt Puckett, PBA Executive Director 
Michael Roddy, FDLEEA Chapter President 
William Smith, FHP Chapter President 
Scott Tloffman, LEO Chapter President 

The Voice of Florida's Law Enforcement Officers 

Respectfully, 



FLORIDA POLICE BENEVOLENT 
ASSOCIATION, INC. 

The Voice of Florida's Law Enforcement Officers 

February 12, 2015 

Senator Alan Hays~ Co-Chair 
Representative Charles Van Zant, Co-Chair 
Joint Select Committee on Collective Bargaining 
Governmental Oversight and Accountability Committee 
404 South Monroe Street 
Ta1lahassee, Florida 32399 

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL 

Re: NOTICE OF INCORRECT CITA110N OF ARTICLE, SPECIAL 
AGENT UNIT: ARTICLE 24, SECTION 2- CALL-BACK 

Dear Senator Hays and Representative VanZant: 

P lease be advised the impasse letter dated February 11, 2015 from the Florida PBA 
incotrectly identifies as an impasse item At1icle 24, Section 3 relating to court appearance. The 
correct section of Article 24 at impasse is Section 2 relating to call-back. 

The Florida PBA and DMS are continuing to work to resolve this issue. Hopefully by the 
February 16,2015 impasse hearing, this issue will have been resolved. 

Thank you. 

Respectfully, 

GHJ/dlt 

c : Michael Mattimore, DMS Chief Negotiator 

300 E. Brevard St., Tallahassee, FL 32301-1218 • www.flpba.org • 850.222.3329 • Toll Free: 1.800.733.3722 • Fax: 850.561.0192 





Florida Highway Patrol Unit 

Impasse Proposals 

Article 18 -Hours of Work 
Section 6(c)- Special Compensatory Leave Pay 

Article 25- Wages 
Section 2- Special Pay Issue 



Florida Highway Patrol Unit 

PBA Proposal- Article 18- Hours of Work 
1-15-15 

*Article 18> Section 6, New Subsection (c) 

(c) Special Compensatory Leave Payment Option 

~DORRklNG 
~Fr 

On or after July 1, 2015. contingent on the availability of funds and at the 
Agency's Head's discretion, each agency is authorized to enter into negotiations with 
PBA providing payment to an employee for special compensatory leave earned as 
provided for in Rule 60L-34. Florida Administrative Code or Section 6(A) of this Article. 
The terms of such agreement shall be set forth in a memorandum of agreement mutually 
agreed to by the Agency and PBA. 

*Other sections of Article 18 remain unchanged from current language 



Florida Highway Patrol Unit 

PBA Proposal - Article 25- Wages, Section 1 and 2 
1-15-15 

*Article 25 - Section l - Pay Provision- General: 

WORI<ING 
DRAFT 

(A) Pay shall be in accordance with the Fiscal Year 2014 201 52015-2016 
General Appropriations Act. 

(B) Increases to base rate of pay and salary additives shall be in accordance 
with state law and the Fiscal Year 2014 20152015-2016 General Appropriations Act. 

Section 2 - Special Pay Issue: 

The state agrees to implement the Fiseal Year 2014 20152015-2016 Special Pay 
lssue provided fufleed in Specific Appropriation 1981 in aeeordanee with section 8(2)(6) 
of the Fiseal Yearin the 20 14 20152015-2016 General Appropriations Act 

Effective July 1, 2015, each employee with less than seven years of sworn service 
shall receive a competitive pay adjustment of :3--3.0% percent on the employees June 30, 
2015, base rate of pay or, a t a minimum, an annual $1200 increase in the employee>s 
June 30, 2015 base rate of pay, whichever is greater. 

Effective July I, 20 15, each employee with seven years or more of swmn service 
shall receive a competitive pay adjustment of 5.0% on the employee's June 30,2015 base 
rate of pay or, at a minimum, an annual $1500 increase in the employee's June 30, 2015 
base rate of pay, whichever is greater. 

I *Other sections of Article 25 remain unchanged from current language 





Law Enforcement Officers Unit 

Impasse Proposals 

Article 18- Hours of Work 
Section 6(c)- Special Compensatory Leave Pay 

Article 25 - Wages 
Section 2 - Special Pay Issue 



Law Enforcement Officers Unit 

PBA Proposal- Article 18- Hours of Work 
1-15-15 

*Article 18, Section 6, New Subsection (c) 

(c) Special Compensatory Leave Payment Option 

WORKING 
DRAFT 

On or After July l. 2015, contingent on the availability of funds and at the 
Agency's Head's discretion, each agency is authorized to enter into negotiations with 
PBA providing payment to an employee for special compensalory leave earned as 
provided for in Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code or Section 6CA) of this Article. 
The terms of such agreement shall be set forth in a memorandum ef-agreement mutuaHy 
agreed to by the Agency and PBA. 

*Other sections of Article 18 remain unchanged from current language 



Law Enforcement Officers Unit 

PBA Proposal - Article 25 - Wages, Section 1 and 2 
1-15-15 

*Article 25- Section 1 - Pay Provision - General: 

WORKING 
DRAFT 

(A) Pay shall be in accordance with the Fiscal Year 2014 20152015-2016 
General Appropriations Act. 

(B) Increases to base rate of pay and salary additives shall be in accordance 
with state law and the Fiscal Year 2014 20152015-2016 General Appropriations Act. 

Section 2- Special Pay Issue: 

The state agrees to implement the fiseal Year 2014 20152015-2016 Special Pay 
Issue provided ft:mded in 8peoifie A:ppmpriatioo 1981 in accordance with section 8(2)(d) 
of the Fiscal Yearjn the 2014 20152015-2016 General Appropriations Act; 

Effective July 1. 2015, each employee with less than seven years of sworn service 
shaH receive a competitive pay ad justment of ~-~on the employee's June 30, 
2015, base rate of pay or, at a minimum, an annual $1200 increase in the employee's 
June 30. 2015 base rate of pay, whjchever is greater. 

Effective July 1. 2015. each employee with seven years or more of sworn service 
shall receive a competitive pay adjustment of 5.0% on the employee's June 30. 2015 base 
rate of pay or. at a minimum, an annual $1500 increase in the employee's June 30, 2015 
base rate of pay. whichever is greater. 

I *Other sections of Article 25 remain unchanged from current language 





Special Agent (FDLE) Unit 

Impasse Proposals 

Article 23 -Hours of Work 
Section 4(c)- Special Con1pensatory Leave Pay 

Article 24 - Court Appearance 
Section 3 - Court Appearance 

Article 25 -Wages 
Section 2 - Special Pay Issue 



Special Agents Unit 

PBA Proposal- Article 23- Hours of Work 
1-15-15 

*Article 23, Section 4, New Subsection (c): 

(c) Special Compensatory Leave Payment Option 

WORKING 
DRAFT 

On or after JuLy 1, 2015, contingent on the availability of funds and at the 
Agency's Head's discretion, each agency is authorized to enter into negotiations with 
PBA providing payment to an employee for special compensatory leave earned as 
provided for in Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code or Section 6(A) of this Article. 
The terms of such agreement shall be set forth in a memorandum of agreement mutually 
agreed to by the Agency and PBA. 

*Other sections of Article 23 remain unchanged from current language 



Special Agents Unit 

PBA Proposal - Article 24 - Court Appearances 
1-15-15 

*Article 24, Sections 2 and 3: 

Section 2 -Call-Back 

An employee called out to work at a time not contiguous with the employee's 
scheduled work hours shall be credited for actual time worked or a minimum of twa-four 
hours, whichever is greater. 

Section 3- Court Appearances 

If an employee is subpoenaed to appear as a witness in a job-related court case) not 
during the employee's regularly assigned work hours, the employee shall be credited for 
actual time worked~ or a minimum of two and one halfthrcc hours, whichever is greater. 

*Other sections of Alticle 24 remain unchanged from current language 



Special Agents Unit 

PBA Proposal -Article 25- Wages, Section 1 and 2 
1-15-15 

*Article 25 - Section 1 -Pay Provision -General: 

(A) Pay shall be in accordance with the Fiscal Year 2014 20152015-2016 
General Appropriations Act. 

(B) Increases to base rate of pay and salary additives shall be in accordance 
with state law and the Fiscal Year 2014 201 ~20 1 5 -20 16 General Appropriations Act. 

Section 2 - Special Pay Issue: 

The state agrees to implement the Fisoal Year 20-l4 20 152015-2016 Special Pay 
Issue provided funded iA Speeific AppropriatioA 1981 iA aooordaAee with section 8(2)(d) 
efthe Fiscal Yearin the 2014 20152015-2016 General Appropriations Act; 

Effective July 1, 2015, each employee with less than seven years of sworn service 
shall receive a competitive pay adjustment of ~~on the employee's June 30, 
2015, base rate of pay or, at a minimum, an annual $ 1200 increase in the employee's 
June 30, 20 15 base rate of pay, whichever is greater. 

Effective July 1. 2015, each employee with seven years or more of sworn service 
shall receive a competitive pay adjustment of 5.0% on the employee's June 30, 2015 base 
rate of pay or, at a minimum, an annual $1500 increase in the employee's June 30, 2015 
base rate of pay, whichever is greater. 

I *Other sections of Article 25 remain unchanged from cun·ent language 



PBA: Lottery Law 
Enforcement 



FLORIDA POLICE BENEVOLENT 
ASSOCIATION, INC. 

The Voice of Floridas Law Enforcement Officers 
February 11, 20 15 

Senator Alan Hays, Co-Chair 
Representative Chal'les VanZant, Co-Chair 
Joint Select Committee on Collective Bargaining 
Governmental Oversight and Accountability Committee 
404 South Monroe Street 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399 

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL 

Re: Collective Bargaining Proposal of PBA for Lottery Law E nforcement Unit 

Dear Senator Hays and Representative VanZant: 

Attached you w ill find the wage proposal submitted by the Florida Police Benevolent 
Association, Jnc., to the Florida Lottery covering the law enforcement bargaining unit represented by 
the Florida PBA. This is a new (recertified) bargaining unit. 

As an examination of the impasse letter from the Lottery's chjef negotiator indicates, the 
Lottery and the PBA are at impasse on the issue of wages. The Florida PBA is seeking to have the 
Lottery special agents treated in the same manner as other state Jaw enforcement officers in this 
year's wage proposal. 

In order to assist you in resolving the impasse, the Florida PBA offers the following 
information and comments: 

CONTACT PERSONS 

Information relating to the PBA proposals and the reasons for such proposals 
avai lable from two primary contact persons: (a) PBA Executive Director, 
Matt Puckett, matt@flpba.org, and (b) PBA General Counsel, Hal Johnson, 
hal@flpba.org. 

ISSUE: WAGES (Article 22) 

As previously stated, the Florida PBA's wage proposal is identical with the 
proposals of the PBA for its other units. The overaJJ intent of the proposal is 
to begin to establish a competitive and cohesive pay system which ensures the 
wages are competitive and provide an equitable pay differentiation in salaries 
between veteran and less senior agents. 

300 E. Brevard St., Tallahassee, FL 32301-1218 • www.flpba.org • 850.222.3329 • Toll Free: 1.800.733.3722 • Fax: 850.561.0192 



Senator Alan Hays, Co-Chair 
Representative Charles VanZant, Co-Chail· 
Joint Select Committee on Collective Bargaining 
February 11, 20 I 5 
Page 2 of2 

This proposal has three important components: (a} a generaJ base salary 
adjustment consistent with that provided other state employees, (b) a special 
base salary adjustment for Lottery law enforcement personnel designed to 
enhance the competitiveness of such salaries, and (c) a minor wage 
differentjation designed to address ongoing salary compression issues faced 
by the Lottery's veteran law enforcement personnel. 

Thank you for your consideration of the Flot,ida PBA's wage proposal. We ask again that 
you please give se1·ious consideration to granting your Lottery law enforcement personnel a wage 
adjustment that reflects their dedication and service to the citizens of Florida. 

GHJ/dlt 

Encl(s) 

c: Michael Mattimore, DMS ChiefNegotiator 
Matt Puckett, PBA Executive Director 
Scott Hoffman, LEO Chapter President 

The Voice of Florida's Law Enforcement Q[ficers 

Respectfully, 



Lottery Law Enforcement Unit 

Impasse Proposals 

Article 22- Wages 
Section 2 - Special Pay Issue 



Lottery Law Enforcement Officers Unit 

PBA Proposal- Article 22- Wages, Section 2 
1-28-15 

*Article 25 - Pay Provision - General: 

Section 2- Special Pay Issue: 

The Agency agrees to implement the Fiscal Year 2014 201520 15-2016 Special 
Pay Issue provided in the ~l-4-WH20 I 5-2016 General Aw.ropriations Act: 

Effective July I, 2015, each employee with less than seven years of sworn service 
shall receive a competitive pay adjustment of 3.0% on the employee's June 30, 2015, 
base rate of pay or, at a minimum, an annual $1200 increase in the employee's June 30, 
2015 base rate of pay. whichever is greater. 

Effective July l. 2015, each employee with seven years or more of sworn service 
shall receive a competitive pay adjustment of5.0% on the employee's Jtme 30,2015 base 
rate of pay or, at a minimum. an annual $1500 increase in the employee's June 30. 2015 
base rate of pay, whichever is greater. 

*Other sections of Article 22 remain unchanged from contract language proposed by the 
Lottery on January 28, 2015. Lottery proposed Sections 2-5 shall be renumbered. 



Teamsters 
Local Union 2011 



PHILLIPS, RICHARD & RIND, P.A. 

KATHLEEN M. PHILLJPS 
MARK RJCRARD 
OSNAT K. RIND 

OF COUNSEL: 
UBBY HERRERA·NA V ARRETE, P.A. 
PATRICIA TRELAND 

VIA EMAIL AND U.S. MAIL 

Senator Alan Hays, Co-Chair 

A7TORNEYS 1\1 LAW 

February 11,2015 

Representative Charles VanZant, Co-Chair 
Joint Select Committee on Collective Bargaining 
402 S. Monroe St. 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 

Re: Articles at Impasse - Fiscal Year 2015-2016 

Dear Senator Hays and Representative VanZant: 

9360 SW 72 STREET, SUITE! 283 
MlAMI, FLORIDA 33173 
Tel: (305) 412-8322 
Fax: (305) 4J 2-R299 

This firm represents the Teamsters Local Union No. 2011 ("Teamsters") for the purpose of 
collective bargaining negotiations witll the State of Florida ("State"). This Jetter is submitted in 
response to your Jetter of February 6, 20 15 requesting certain documentation. 

The following articles are presentl y at impasse between the parties: Article 3 " Vacant," Article 4 
"No Discrimination," Article 5 "Union Activities and Employee Representation," Article 6 
"Grievance Procedure,'' Article 7 "Discipline and Discharge." Article 8 "Workforce Reduction," 
Article 9 "Reassignment, Transfer, Change in Duty Station," Article I 0 "Promotions," Article I 1 
"Classification Review," Article 12 "Personnel Records," Article 13 ~<Safety," Article 18 
"Leaves of Absence," Article 24 ''On-Call Assigrunent and Call-Back," Article 25 "Wages," and 
Article 26 "Uniform and insignia." 

Please see the enclosed documents, which include copies of the most recent proposals on the 
articles referenced above, a summary overview of the proposals, and a summary overview of the 
rationale behind the proposals. 

The date at which the parties are declared to be at t'impasse" is dri ven by statute, as opposed to 
natural termination of the parties' negotiations. Accordingly, the Teamsters continue to discuss 
proposals on the remainjng articles with the State in an attempt to resolve all outstanding issues. 
The Teamsters have reserved the right to amend any existing proposal enclosed herewith, and 
remain hopeful that additional articles will be removed from the legislature's consideration prior 
to the final resolution of impasse. 

Si~ 

Enclosures Holly E. Van Horsten, Esq. 



Article Summary of Most Recent Rationale 
Union Proposal 

Article 3- Returning the language of the Dues Having the language in the contract provides 
Vacant (Dues Deduction Article that was completely Officers with the security that the 
Deduction) stripped from the contract. convenience of dues deduction will be 

available to them for the duration of the 
contract. 

Article 5- StatUs Quo No change in contract language necessary. 
Union 
Activities and 
Employee 
Representation 
Article 6 - 1. If the parties agree on grievance 1. This preserves the parties ' right to 
Grievance mediation, the time limits for arbitration while simultaneously affording a 
Procedure arbitration must be preserved so the cost-effective alternative means of dispute 

parties can pursue this cost-effective resolution. 
means of pre-arbitral dispute 
resolution. 2. When an arbitrator finds that a 

suspension/termination was not just, and that 
2. No restriction on an arbitrator's the Officer is entitled to back pay, the Officer 
appropriate and proper award of back should not be punished by having to take a 
pay based solely on a short, rarely- reduction in back pay for a sbott, 
granted continuance of the arbitration infrequently requested/granted continuance 
hearing. of the hearing. 

3. A party desiring a transcript of an 3. It is only fair that the party desiring a 
arbitration hearing is responsible for transcript should pay for said transcript; and 
the cost of the transcript. The parties that the parties should share the cost if the 
split the cost of a copy of the transcript arbitrator requests a copy. 
for the arbitrator. 

4. Removing the ability for a recently-
4. No waiver of the right of a promoted Officer to grieve improper 
recently-promoted employee to have a discipl ine discourages qualified Officers 
dispute about the propriety of a from applying for promotions. It is a 
discipline/termination resolved by way disincentive for an Officer, who is successful 
of a grievance process with "its in his current position, to take a promotion if 
terminal step a fmal and binding he loses his rights to grieve unfair discipline 
disposition by an impartial neutral." and can be dismissed without due process. 
F.S. § 447.401. "All public employees 
shall have the right to a fair and 5. It is against the weight of labor arbitration 
equitable grievance procedure ... :· F.S. precedent to have a preponderance of the 
§ 447.401. evidence standard in all cases. Arbitrators 

universally recognize that certain cases- like 
5. Arbitrations concerning those involving accusations of moral 
accusations of moral turpitude shall be turpitude - require a clear and convincing 
detennined by applying a clear and evidence standard. Not as high a burden as 

2 



convincing evidence standard. criminal taw, but something greater than a 
preponderance -or 51% -of the evidence. 

Article 7 - The Teamsters propose language to fix 1. Removing the ability for a recently-
Discipline and flaws in the disciplinary process that promoted Officer to grieve improper 
Discharge ultimately hann the Department and discipHne discourages qualified Officers 

the Officers. from applying for promotions. It is a 
disincentive for an Officer, who is successful 

1. No waiver ofthc right of a in his current position, to take a promotion if 
recently-promoted employee to have a be loses his rights to grieve unfair discipline 
dispute about the propriety of a and can be dismissed without due process. 
discipline/termination resolved by way 
of a grievance process with "its 2. This provides a level of fairness to the 
terminal step a final and binding Officer because he cannot dispute the 
disposition by an impartial neutral." propriety of a written reprimand before an 
F.S. § 447.401. ''All public employees impartial neutral. It also provides a clear 
shall have the right to a fair and incentive for proper behavior rehabilitation 
equitable grievance procedure .... " F.S. and modification. 
§ 447.401. 

3. The use of"cumulative" discipline 
2. lf a written reprimand is not going severe! y undermines rhe fairness and 
to be subject to arbitration- an effectiveness of the disciplinary process. 
adjudication of the propriety of the Each and every time and employee engages 
discipline by an impartial neutral (F.S. in any disciplinary violation, be is charged 
§ 447.401 ), it must not be used against with "conduct unbecoming" and "failure to 
an 0 ffi.cer after a certain amount of follow a written or oral instn1ction." 
time, if the Officer is not subsequently 
disciplined for the same offense. 4. This language would provide the DOC 

with the ability lo discipline an Officer, but 
3. An Officer must only be charged not lose manpower in a time of serious 
with violations for which the DOC has understaffmg issues and overtime in excess 
a se12arate factual basis. of the amount budgeted. Also, the DOC has 

expressed an interest in reducing Officer's 
4. An Officer can elect to have special special compensatory leave time banks and 
compensatory leave time deducted this would provide the DOC with such an 
from his bank of hours - equal to the opportunity. It also eliminates the potential 
length of the disciplinary suspension- for inconsistent application of the rule if it is 
in lieu of serving an at-home by Officer request instead of only by DOC 
suspension. discretion. 

Aaticlc 8 - The Teamsters propose that if the state For the sake of continuity in DOC 
Workforce privatizes DOC functions perfonncd operations, community safety, and 
Reduction by bargaining unit members (the employing experienced Officers, any 

Officers), the contractor must offer contractor should be required to offer 
employment qualified Officers and employment to the Officers working in the 
assume the terms and conditions of the institution prior to subcontracting. 
contract for the remainder of its 

3 



duration. 
Article 9- 1. Officers must not be restricted in It is only fair 1hat the DOC not be able to rip 
Reassignment, reques6ng a reassignment, transfer or an Officer from his cmrent institution and 
Transfer, change in duty station only from one move him, without meaningful constraints on 
Change in Duty major institution to another major the discretion to do so, as ifhe were a game 
Station institution. piece instead of a person with an established 

home, family, and life in the community. 
2. If an agency can involuntarily 
reassign, transfer or change the duty 
station of an Officer according to the 
needs of the agency, the agency must 
make a "good faith" effort to take such 
action only when dictated by the needs 
of the agency; the agency must also 
consider the needs and circumstances 
of the Officer before taking such 
action. 

3. \Vben the DOC needs to reassign a 
probation officer to another office 
because the case load at that other 
office requires another officer, the 
DOC shall first seek volunteers and if 
there are no volunteers, the 
reassignment will be on the basis of 
seniority. 

4. Eliminating the waiver of an 
Oftlcer's right to griev_e disputes (F.S. 
§ 44 7.40 I) concerning the application 
of this Article. 

Article 10- The Teamsters proposal in response to 
Promotions the state's proposed changes is 

forthcoming. 
Atticle 1 I - Status Quo No change in contract language necessary. 
Classification 
Review 
Article l 2 - Status Quo No change rn contract language necessary. 
Personnel 
Records 
Article 13- I. The State will abide by applicable 1. The majority of DOC vehicles are not in 
Safety statute and regulations with regard to acceptable condition according to the OMS 

state-owned vehicles. criteria. The average vehicle has over 
151 ,000 miles on it & 77% ofthe vehicles 

3. The parties acknowledge and agree are eligible for disposal based on OMS 
that all safety equipment, including criteria. 
but not limited to bulletproof vests and • Officer received carbon monoxide 

4 



radios, provided to the bargaining unit poisoning from sitting in a vehicle 
members by the state must be proper! y wilh over 200,000 miles on it 
maintained and in good working order. • Vehicles, transporting prisoners, 

break-down on the side of the road 
4. The agencies shall maintain proper Fill1ctional and properly maintained vehicles 
staffing levels, including but not are necessary to ensure officer safety. 
limited to maintaining critical levels. 
The agencies shall not engage in 3. Proper staffing levels ensure the safety of 
ghosting. the public, the officers, and the prisoners. 

5. Remove language in regard to a 4. The offic.ers put their lives at risk for the 
waiver of the right to grievance and safety of the community. Thus, they should 
arbitration- a permissive subject of be provided with safety equipment that meets 
bargaining. manufacturer standards. 

5. A permissive subject of bargaining cannot 
be insisted to impasse. The State must 
remove the waiver from its proposal or 
obtain agreement from the Union on 
including the waiver, before the legislature 
decides which proposal will be operative for 
at least the next fiscal year. 

Article 18- Officer shall not be required to Many ofthe officers in the bargaining unit 
Leaves of sacrifice his annual leave (vacation were permitted to accrue so many special 
Absence time) or regular compensatory leave compensatory leave hours (due to short 

(leave time provided to compensate staffing) that requiring the use of special 
for extra hours worked) by being comp before annual leave means that officer 
forced to use special compensatory are not able - at any point of rime during the 
leave before such leave. year- to use annual leave, which means that 

they automatically lose the value of the 
annual leave 

Article 24- On- Status Quo No change in contract language necessary. 
Call Assignment 
and Call-Back 
Pay 
A1ticle 25- 1. Pay Parity The Department cannot retain quality 
Wages 2. A fair and equitable wage increase. personnel if its wages for Officer, Sergeant, 

3. Conect the apparent oversight that Lieutenant and Captain are so tar below 
left corrections officers out of FY wages of other law enforcement officers. The 
2013-2014 & 2014-20l5 1aw Department ends up training and certifying 
enforcement officer wage increases in officers and can leave the DOC and 
the General Appropriations Act. sometimes double their hourJy wage! The 

attrition (turn-over) rate is just under 
seventeen gercent (17%} and the institutions 
are already, as even the DOC admits, 
understaffed as it is. 

Article 26- The DOC is mandating clear Perhaps clear lunchboxes for Officers is a 

5 



Unifonn and lunchboxes for Officer lunches; the good idea if it actually works in combatting 
fnsignia rationale is to protect against the entrance of contraband into the 

contraband. DOC requires that institution. It is hugely important to fight 
Officers use lunchboxes purchased contraband. However, the lunchboxes the 
from the DOC sta!T canteen (store). Department ordered are flimsy and prone to 
These boxes are feeble and break. The break. One the box does break, the Officer is 
Teamsters therefore propose that required to buy a replacement directly from 
Officers be provided with replacement and only from the DOC. I) If it is going to 
lunchboxes at no cost to them, or be be required, Officers should not have to pay 
allowed to purchase higher-quality to replace insufficient craftsmanship; 2) if the 
boxes from other sources. reason for requiring the box is that it's clear, 

and clear helps combat contraband, there is 
no reason why must it be purchased from the 
DOC if a better, studier, and more effective 
model is available on the private market. 

• Also, the Officers are aware of no 
doclltnentation that supports the 
selection of lhe particular vendor based 
on competitive pricing, value and/or 
benefit. 

6 



Article 3 
VACANT 

DUES DEDUCTION 

Teamsters Local 20 II 
Proposal - Article 3 
November 21, 2014 

(A) During the term of this Agreement. the state. by and through its respective 
agencies. agrees to deduct Union membership dues and uniform assessments. if any, in an 
amount established by the Union and certified in writing by the President of the Union, or his 
designee to the state, from the pay of those employees in the bargaining units who individually 
make such request on a written check-off authorization form provided by the Union (Appendix 
B). Such deduction will be made by the agency when other payroll deductioi1S are made and will 
begin with the pay for the first full pav period following receipt of the authorization by the 
agency. 

(B) The Union shall advise the state of any unifo1m assessment of increase in dues in 
writing at least thirty (30) days prior to its effective date. 

(C) This Article applies on ly to the deduction of membership dues and uniform 
assessments. if any, and shall not apply to the collection of any fines. penalties. or special 
assessments 

(D) Employee organization dues deduction wi ll be provided for the certified 
bargaining agent on lv. 

SECTION 2 -Remittance 

Deductions of dues and uniform assessments, if anv. shall be remitted exclusively to the 
President of the Teamsters Local 20 II or his designee. by the respective agencies on either a 
biwe~ekly or monthly cycle along with a list containing names. social security numbers, agency 
division, district. institution. and amount deducted. of the employees for whom the remittance is 
made. 

SECTION 3- Insufficient Pav for Deduction 

In the event an employee's salary is earnings within any pay period, after deductions for 
withho lding soc ial security, reti rement. and insurance, are not sufficient to cover dues and any 
uniform assessments. it wi ll be the responsibility ofthe Union to collect its dues and uniform 
assessments for that pay period directly from the employee. 

SECTION 4- Termination of Deduction 

Deductions for Union dues and/or uniform assessments shall continue until either: (1) 

revoked by the employee providing the state and the Union with thirty (30) days w ritten notice 
that he is terminating the prior check-off authorization: (2) revoked pursuant to Secti on 44 7.507, 
Florida Statutes: (3) the termination of employment; or (4} the transfer. promotion, or demotion 
ofthe employee out ofthis bargaining unit. If these deductions are continued when any ofthe 
above situations occur, the Union shall. upon notice of the error, reimburse the employee for the 
deduction that were improperly withheld . 

1 



SECTION 5 -Identification 

Teamsters Local 20 II 
Proposal - Article 3 
November21, 2014 

The Union shall indemnify. defend and hold the State of Florida. its officers. officials, 
agents. and employees. harmless against any claim. demand. suit. or liability (monetary or 
otherwise) and forall legal costs arising from any action taken or not taken by the state. its 
officials. agents and emplovees in complying with this Article. The Union shall promptl.y refund 
to the state any funds received in accordance with this Article. which are in excess of the amount 
of dues and/or uniform assessments. which the state or its agencies have agreed to deduct. 

SECTION 6 - Processing the Dues Check-off Authorization Form 

(A) The Dues Check-off Authorization_ Form (Appendix B) supplied by the Union 
shall: (1) be in strict conformance with Appendix B: (2) be the only form used by bargaining unit 
employees who wish to initiate dues deduction: (3) contain all the information required for 
processing prior to submission to the state. 

(8) Changes in the Dues Check-off Authorization Forms required by (A) above will 
not affect deductions authorized by forms that the parties have previously agreed to. 

(C) Forms that are: (I) incorrectly filled out or do not contain all the information 
necessary for payroll processing. (2.) postdated. or (3) submitted to the state more than sixty (60) 
days following the date of the employee's signature will be returned to the Union. 

2 



Article 4 
NO DTSCRJMINA T ION 

SECTION 1- Non-Discrimination Policy- State-Federa l Law 

Teamsters Local 20 II 
Proposal - Article 4 
November 21, 20 14 

(A) The state and the Union shall not discriminate against any employee for any reason 
prohibited under Florida Statutes or any federal law. 

(8) Tf:te UnieB shall ha .. ·e the right to eens1:1lt en issttes ef~:tniB:Yrft:tl diseriminalien v,·itf:t the 
Slef3 I Management Representati .. ·e aRe/or designee(s), I:IJ3 tl'lro1:1gh tJ:te Step 2 ManagemeRt 
Representati¥e an:ellor elesignee(s), ta tf:te Oef)artrnent of Manage1'Rent Ser..,iees. 

(GB) Any cla im of unlawful discrimination by an employee against the state, its officials or 
representatives. except for grievances related to Union membership. shall only be subject to the 
method of reviev prescribed by law or by rules and regulations having the force and effect of 
law. 

(.og The Union agrees to support the state ' s current aff1m1ative action programs and efforts to 
comply with the Americans with Disabil ities Act. 

SECTION 2 - Non-Discrimination Policy - Union Membership 

Neither the state nor the Union shall interfere with the right of employees covered by this 
Agreement to become or refrain from becoming members of the Union, and neither the state nor 
the Union shall di scriminate against an employee because of membership or non-membership in 
any employee organization. 



Article 5 

Teamsters Local 20 II 
Proposal - A11icle 5 - Status Quo 

December 16, 2014 

UNION ACTIVITIES AND EMPLOYEE REPRESENTATION 

SECTION J - Definitions 

(A) The tem1 ''employee'' as used in this Agreement shall mean an employee included in the 
bargaining unit represented by the Union. 

t B) The term 11Grievance Representative," as used in this Agreement, sha II mean an employee 
designated by the President of the Union to investigate grievances at the Oral Step and to represent a 
gri evant at the Oral Step and Step I meetings on grievances \vh ich have been properly filed under 
Article 6 of this Agreement. when the Union has been se lected as t.he employee's representative. 

SECTION 2- Designation of Employee Repr·esentatives 

(A) The President ofthe Union shall furnish to the state and keep up-to-date a list of Union 
Business Agents. The state will not recognize any person as a Business Agent whose name does not 
appear on the list 

(8) The Union shall select a reasonable number of employees to be Union Stewards. The 
Union shall furnish the state the name. official class title, name of employing agency. and specific 
work location of each employee designated to act as a Union Steward. The state shall not recognize 
an employee as an authorized Union Stevvard until such information has been received ti·om the 
Union. 

(C) Union Business Agents and Stewards may represent employees as Grievante 
Representatives. 

SECTrON 3- Bulletin Boards 

(A) Where requested in writing. the state agrees to furnish in state-contro lled facilities to 
which employees arc assigned. wall space not to exceed 4'x4' for Union-purchased bulletin 
bl)ards of an equal size. Such bul letin boards will be placed at a state facility in an area norn1ally 
accessible to, and frequented by. employees. Once a location has been establi shed. it shall not be 
moved without notice. Where the Union currently ma intains bulletin boards or bulletin board 
space. that practice shall continue. 

(B) The use of Union bulletin board space is limited to the following notices: 

(I) Recreational and soc ial affairs of the Union 
(2) Union meetings 
(3) Union elections 
(4) Repo11s of Union committees 
(5) Unit)n benefit programs 
(6) Current Union Agreement 
(7) Training and educational opportuni ties 
(8) Decisions reached tlwough consultation meetings, as approved by the 

Department of Management Services 



Teamsters Local 20 II 
Proposal -Article 5 - Status Quo 

December 16, 2014 

(9) Notices of wage increa. es lbr covered employees 
(C) Materials posted on these bulletin boards shall not contain anything. which violates or 

has the eJ1'ect of violating any law. rule. or regulation. nor shall any posted material contain 
anything reflecting adverse ly on the state or any of its officers or employees. 

(I)) Postings must be dated and bear the signature of an authorized Union representative. 

(E) A violation of these provisions by a Union Business Agent. Steward or an authorized 
rt:presentative shall be a basis for removal of bulletin board privi leges for that representative by 
the Department of Management Services. 

SECTION 4 - Information 

(A) Upon request of the Union on no more than on a quarterly basis, the state will provide it 
with personnel data from the state personnel database (People First). These data will inc lude 
employees' names, home addresses, work locations, classification titles, and other data elements as 
identified by the Union that are not c.onfi.dentialunder state law. This information wi ll be prepared on 
the basis of the latest information available in the database at the time of the request. 

(B) It is the state's policy to protect employee data exempt from public access under the 
provisions of Florida Statute 119.071 (4) fi·om inadvertent or improper disclosure. Such data jnclude 
home addresses, telephone nwnbers, social security numbers, and dates of birth. The Union agrees, 
therefore, that these exempt data are provided for the so le and exclusive use of the Union in carrying 
out its role as certified bargaining agent. This information may not be relayed, sold, or transferred to 
a third party and may not be used by an entity or individual for any purpose other than Union 
business. 

(C) Upon request and receipt of payment, the state shall provide accredited representatives 
infonnation, documents, or other public records for the investigation of an employee ' s grievance. 

SECTlON 5 - Occupation Profiles and Rules 

(A) The state yvi ll maintain on the Department of Management Services' website the 
occupatiQn profiles and the Rules ofthe State Personnel System. 

(B) In instances where the state determines that a revision to an occupation profile or 
occupational level for posit ions covered by thi s Agreement is needed. tbe Department of 
Management Services shall not if~' the Union in writing of the proposed changes. This procedure 
shall not constitute a waiver of the Union's right to bargain over such matters in accordance with 
Chapter 447. Part II. Florida Statutes and applicable law. The Union shall notify the Department 
"Of Management Services, in writing within ten calendar days of its receipt of written notification 
from the Depat1ment. of its comments concerning the proposed changes, or or its desire to 
dis~.:uss the proposed change(s). Failure o f the Union to notify the Department of Management 
Services within thi s speci fied period shall constitute a waiver of the right to discuss the 
change(s). 

2 



SECTION 6 - Representative Access 

Teamsters Local 20 II 
Proposal -Article 5- Status Quo 

December 16, 20 I 4 

(A) The state agrees that accredited representatives of the Union shall have access to the 
premises of the state which are available to the public. 

(13) If any area of the state's premises is restricted to the public, permission must be 
requested lO enter such areas and such permission wi ll not be unreasonably denied. Such access 
shall be during the regular working hours of the employee and shall be to investigate an 
employee's grievance. 

SECTION 7- New Employee Orientation and Training Academies 

The Union will be permitted a 15-minute presentation to address new employees at 
orientation and training academies. The Union may issue each new recruit a copy of the current 
Security Services Agreement, discuss the provisions of the Agreement, and programs available 
through the Union. A presentation may be made only once per academy class. The Union President 
or designee will be notified 14 days In advance of new employee training whenever practicable. 

SECTION 8- Consultation 

(A) In order to provide a means for continu ing communication between the parties and upon 
request of the President of the Union, the Secretary of the Department of Management Serv ices 
anc;i/or hi s designated representative(s) and not more than three representatives of the Union shall 
make a good faith effo1t to meet and consult quarterly. Such meetings shall be held at a time and 
place designated by the Department of Management Services. 

(B) Upon request by the designated Union Staff Representative. the Agency Head and/or 
designee(s) and the Staff Representative, with not more than three Union representatives from the 
agency, shall make a good faith effort to meet and consult quarterly. Such meetings shaJI be held at a 
time and place to be designated by the Agency Head or his designee after consu lting with the Union 
Staff Representative. 

(C) Upon request by the designated Un ion Staff Representative, the Step 1 Management 
Representative and/or designee(s) and the designated Union Staff Representative, with not more than 
two Union representatives from the agency, shall make a good faith effort to meet and consu lt. Such 
meetings shall be he ld at a time and place to be designated by the Step 1 Management Representative 
after consulting with the Union Staff Representative. A copy of all requests shall be served on both 
the agency and the Union at their principal offices. 

(D) All consultation meetings will be scheduled after giving due consideration to the 
avai lability and work location of all parties. If a consu ltation meeting is held or requires reasonable 
travel time during the regular work hours of any participant, such hours shall be deemed time 
worked. Attendance at a consu ltation meeting outside of a participanr s re.gular work hours shall nol 
be deemed time worked. 

(£) The purpose of all consultation meetings sha ll be to discuss matters relating to the 
administration of this Agreement and agency activities affecting employees. It is understood that 
these meetings shaJ I not be used for the purpose of discussing pending grievances or for negotiation 

3 



Teamsters Local 20 II 
Proposal - Article 5 -Status Quo 

December 16, 20 14 

purposes. The parties shall exchange agenda indicating the matters they wish to d iscuss no later than 
seven calendar days prior to the scheduled meeting date. 

(F) An agency shall prepare a written response to issues raised during a consultation meeting 
within 30 days afte r the date of the meeting. 

SECTION 9- Negotiations 

The Union agrees that a ll collective bargaining is to be conducted with state representatives 
des ignated for that purpose by the Governor, as Chief Executive Ofticer. While negotiating meeti ngs 
shall nonn ally be he ld in Tallahassee, the state and the Union may agree to meet e lsewhere at a state 
fac ility or other location which involves no rental cost ro the state. There shall be no negotiation by 
the Union at any other level of state govemment. 



Article 6 
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

Teamsters Local 20 I I 
Proposal - Article 6 
December 16. 20 14 

lt is the policy of the state and Union to encourage infon11al discussions between supervisors 
and employees of employee complaints. Such discussions should be held with a view to reaching an 
understanding which will resolve the matter in a manner satisfactory to the employee and the state. 
without need for recourse to the formal grievance procedure prescribed by this Article. 

SECTION t -Definitions 

As used in this Article: 

(A) "Grievance" shall mean a dispute involving the interpretation or application of the 
specific provisions of this Agreement. except as exclusions are noted in th is Agreement, fi led on the 
appropriate form as contained in Appendix B of this Agreement. 

(B) "Grievant" shall mean an employee or a group of employees having the same grievance. 
In the case of a group of employees one employee shall be designated by the group to act as 
spokesperson and to be responsi ble for processing the grievance. 

(C) ·'Days'" shall mean business days. ''Business days" refers to the ordinary business hours. 
i.e., 8:00a.m. until 5:00p.m., Monday through Friday. in the time zone in which the rec ipient is 
located. Furthermore, ·'business days'' do not inc lude any day observed as a holiday pursuant to 
section 1 I 0.117, Florida Statutes, holiday observed by the Union pursuant to a list furnished to the 
state in writing, as of the effective date of this Agreement, or day during a suspension of grievance 
processing as agreed in writing by the parties. "Business days" also do not include a day(s) on which 
the offices ofDMS or any agency employing bargaining unit members are closed under an Executive 
Order of the Governor or otherwise for an emergency condition or disaster under the prov isions of 
Rule 60L-34.0071(3)(e). 

SECTION 2 - Election of Remedy and Representation 

(A) If a grievant or the Union has a grievance which may be processed under this Article and 
which may also be appealed to the Public Employees Relations Commission. the grievant or the 
Union shal l ind icate at the time the grievance is reduced to writing which procedure is to be used and 
such decision shall be binding on the grievant or the Union. In the case of any duplicate filing, the 
action first filed will be the one processed. 

(B) A grievant who decides to use this grievance procedure shall indicate at the Oral Step or 
initial written step (if authorized by the provisions of this Article) whether he shall be represented by 
the Union. lfthe grievant is represented by tf1e Union. any decision agreed to by the state and Union 
shall be binding on the grievant. 

{C) Where Union representation is requested by a grievant, the grievant's representative sha ll 
be selected from the list of Union Grievance Representatives or Union Business Agents which has 
been provided to the state by the Union. When an employee has been appropriately designated to 
serve as a Grievance Representative and the state has been notified in accordance with Attic le 5, 



Teamsters Local 20 I I 
Proposal -Article 6 
December 16,2014 

Section 2 (B). the Grievance Representati ve shall be authorized to investigate grievances and 
represent grievants in accordance with this Article, subject to the following limitations: 

( 1) A Grievance Representative will not be allowed time off with pay to investigate 
hi s own grievance. 

(2) Ti me spent by a Grie\lance Represeh tative in investigating a grievance shall be: 
the m inimum amount of time necessary to perform the specific investigati on invo lved . 

(a) If a grievant selects a Grievance Representative to represent him in a 
grievance which has beeh properly filed in accordance with this At1icle, the Grievance 
Representative may be allowed a reasonable amount of ann ual or compensatory leave to investigate 
the grievance. Such annual or compensatory leave shall be subject to prior approval by the Grievance 
Representative's immediate supervisor; however, approval of such leave will not be withhe ld if the 
Grievance Representative can be allowed such time off without interfering with, or unduly 
hampering the operations of the unit to which the Grievance Representative is regularly assigned. 
The Grievance Representative's immediate supervisor will notify the grievant's supervisor prior to 
allowing the Grievance Representative time off to investigate the grievance. 

(b) Investigations wi ll be conducted in a way that does not interfere with state 
operations. 

(c) The Grievance Representative must be selected tTom Grievance 
Representatives wid1in the same work unit as the grievant 's work unit. If no Grievance 
Re presentative is located in the grievant's work unit the Grievance Representative must be se lected 
from the work unit located closest to the grievant's work location . In no case shall a Grievance 
Representative who is on duty be allowed to travel more than 50 miles from his official work 
location in order to investigate a grievance. Such travel limitation shall not apply when the Grievance 
Re presentative is not on duty. 

(d) A Grievance Representative selected to represent a grievant as provided in 
this Article will be considered a required participant at the Step I grievance meeting. 

(0) The grievant and the grievant's representative, if any, shall be notified of the Step I 
meet ing. Further, all comm unication concerning written grievances or their resolution shall be in 
writing, with a copy sent to the grievant and the grievant's representative. 

(E) If the grievant is not represented by the Union, any adjustment of the grievance shall be 
consistent with the terms of this Agreement. The Union shall be given reasonab le opportunity to be 
present at any meeting ca lled for the resolution of the g rievance, and processing of the grievance will 
be in accordance with the procedures estab lished in this Agreement. The Union shall not be bound by 
the dec ision of any grievance in which the grievant chose not to be re presented by the Union . 

(F) The resolution of a grievance prior to its submission in writing at Step 3 shall not 
establish a precedent binding on either the state or the Union in othei· cases. 

SECTION 3- Procedures 
2 



Teamsters Local 20 I I 
Proposal- Article 6 
December 16, 2014 

(A) Employee grievances filed in accordance with this A1ticle are to be presented and handled 
promptly at the lowest level of supervision having the authority to adjust the grievances. Grievances 
may be filed and responded to by facsim ile, electronic mail, mail, or personal delivery. 

(B) After a grievance is presented, no new violation or issue can be raised. 

(C) There shall be no reprisals against any of the participants in the procedures contained 
herein by reason of such participation. 

(D) If a grievance meeting, mediation, or arbitration hearing is held or requires reasonable 
travel time during the regular work hours of a grievant, a representative of the _grievant, or any 
required witnesses, such hours shall be deemed time worked. Attendance at grievance meetings, 
mediation, or arbitration hearings outside of a participant's regular work hours shall not be deemed 
time worked. The state will not pay the expenses of any participants attending such meetings on 
behalfofthe union. 

(E) Grievances shall be presented and adjusted in the following manner, and no individual 
may respond to a grievance at more than one written step. 

(I) Oral Discussion 

(a) An employee having a grievance may, within 15 days following tl1e 
occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance, initiate the grievance by presenting it orally to 
the Oral Step representative or by filing a written grievance at Step I. The Oral Step representative 
shall make every effort to resolve the grievance at the Oral Step. including meeting to discuss the 
grievance if such meeting is requested by the grievant or the grievant's representative if a meeting is 
deemed necessary by the Oral Step representative. The Oral Step representative shall communicate a 
decision to the grievant and the grievant' s representative, if any, within LO days following the date 
the grievance is received at the Oral Step. 

(b) Failure to com municate the decision within the specified time limit shall 
permit the grievant, or tl1e Un ion where appropriate, to proceed to the next step. 

(c) The number of days indicated at this step shall be considered as the 
maximum, and every effort will be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits specified 
in any step of this procedure may be extended in writi ng in any specific instru1ce as long as necessary 
provided there is agreement by both sides. 

(d) The Oral Step representative for correctional institutions shall be the Chief 
Conectiona l 0-fticer or designee. The Oral Step representative tor community corTections shall be the 
Ci rcuit Administrator, or designee. The Oral Step representative for employees in the institutional 
security specialist series shall be the Security Chief or designee. 

(2) Step I 

(a) lfthe grievant elects to utilize the oral discuss ion step and the grievance is 
not resolved, the grievant or the designated grievance representative may submit it in writing to the 
Step 1 management representative with in lO days following the receipt of the oral step decision. lf 

3 



Teamsters Local 20 I I 
Pro posal - Article 6 
December 16,2014 

the grievant elects not to utilize the oral discussion provision ofthis section he may file a w ritten 
grievance at Step I, provided such wri tten grievance is filed within 15 days following the occurrence 
of the event giving rise to the grievance. In filing a grievance at Step I. the gJievant or the designated 
grievance representative shall submit to the Step I Management Representative a grievance fo rm as 
contai ned in Appendix B. setting forth specifically the complete facts o n which the grievance is 
based , the specific provision or provisions of the Agreement a lleged ly violated. and the relief 
requested. All written documents to be considered by the Step 1 Management Representat ive shall be 
submitted w ith the grievance form: however, if additional written documentation is obtained after the 
grievance is fi led. such documentation may be presented at the Step I meeting. 

(b) The Step I Management Representative or designated representative shall 
meet to discuss the grievance and shall communicate a decision in writing to the g rievant and the 
grievant's representative. if any, within 15 days following the date the grievance is received at Step 
1. 

(c) Fai lure to communicate the decision w ithin the specified time limit sha ll 
penn it the grievant, or the Union where appropriate, to proceed to the next step. 

(d) The number of days indicated at this step shall be considered as the 
maximum, and every effort wi ll be made to exped ite the process. However, the time limits specified 
in any step of this procedure may be extended in writing in any specific instance as Jong as necessary 
provided there is agreement by both sides. 

(3) Step 2 

(a) If the grievance is not resolved at Step I, the grievant or the g rievant's 
representative may submit it in wJiting to the Agency Head or designated representative w ithin l 0 
days after receipt of the decision at Step 1. The grievance shall inc lude a copy of the grievance form 
submitted at Step 1 and a copy of t he Sl'e p I response, together with a ll written documents in support 
of the grievance. When the grievance is eligible for initiation at Step 2. the grievance form must 
contain the same information as a grievance filed at Step I above. 

(b) The Agency Head or designated representative may meet with the 
grievant and/or the grievant's representative to discuss the grievance. If the grievance is initiated at 
Step 2, the parties shall meet to discuss the grievance. The Agency Head or designated representative 
sha ll communicate a decision in writing to the grievant and the grievant's representative. if any. 
within 15 days to llowing receipt of the written grievance. 

(c) Failure to communicate the decision within the specified time limit 
shall permit the employee. or the Union where appropriate. to proceed to the next s tep. 

(d) The number or days indicated at thi s step shal l be cons ide red as the 
maximum. and every effort w ill be made ro expedite the process. However, the time limits 
spec ified in any step o f' this procedure may be extended in wri ting in any spec ific instance as 
lo ng as necessary pro vided there is agreement by both sides. 

( 4) Step 3 - Contract Language Disputes 

4 



Teamsters Local 20 I I 
Proposal -Article 6 
December 16,2014 

(a) If a grievance conceming the interpretation or appl ication of this 
Agreement, other than a grievance alleging that a discipl inary action (reduction in base pay, 
demotion, involuntary transfer of more than 50 miles by highway, suspension, or dismissal) was 
taken without cause, is not resolved at Step 2, the designated Union representative, or the grievant o r 
his representative, if not represented by the Union, may appeal the grievance, in writing, to the 
Depat1ment of Management Services within 15 days after receipt of the decision at Step 2. The 
grievance shall include a copy of the grievance fom1 submitted at Steps 1 and 2, together with all 
written responses and documents in support of the grievance. The Department of Management 
Services shall discuss the grievance with the Union representative, or the grievant or representative if 
not represented by the Union. When the grievance is eligible for initiation at Step 3, the grievance 
form must contain the same infonn ation as the grievance fi led at Step I above. 

(b) The Depattment of Management Services shall communicate a decision in 
writing to the grievant and his representative within 15 days following receipt of the written 
gnevance. 

(c) failure to communicate the decision within the specified time limit shall 
permit the grievant, or the Union where appropriate, to proceed to the next step. 

(d) The number of days indicated atthis step shall be considered as the 
maximum, and every effort will be made to expedite the process. However, the t ime limits specified 
in any step of this procedure may be ex-tended in writing in any specific instance as long as necessary 
provided there is agreement by both sides. 

(5) Grievance Mediation 

The parties may, by written agreement, submit a grievance to mediation to be 
conducted by the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS) after it has been submitted to 
arbitration but before the arbitration hearing. When the parties atrree to mediate a grievance. the 
time limits to file for. o r process. an arbitration are automatically extended fo r the period 
necessary to conclude the mediation process. Either party may withd raw from the mediation 
process with written notice no later than five days before a schedu led mediation. 

(6} Arb itration 

(a) lfa grievance alleging that a disciplinary action (reduction in base pay, demotion. 
involuntary transfer of more than 50 miles by highway, suspension, or dismissa l) was taken without 
cause, is not resolved at Step 2, the President ofthe Union or a designated member of his staff may 
appeal the grievance to arbitration on a Request for Arbitration Form as contained in Appendix C 
with in I 0 days after receipt of the decision at Step 2. If a contract language di spute as desc ribed in 
(4) above is not resolved at Step 3, the President ofthe Union or a designated member of his staff 
may appeal the grievance to arbitration on a Request for Arbitration Fonn as contained in Appendix 
C of this Agreement within 10 days following receipt of the decision at Step 3. If, at the initial step, 
the Union refused to represent the grievant because he was not a dues-paying member of the Union , 
the grievant may appeal the grievance to arbitration. 

(b) The parties may, by agreement in writing, submit related grievances for hearing 
betore the same. arbitrator. 

5 



Teamsters Local 20 II 
Proposal - Article 6 
December 16, 20 I 4 

(c) The arbitrator shall be one person fi·om a panel of five arbitrators, setected by the 
state and the Union to serve in rotation for any case or cases submitted. The Depattment of 
Management Services' Arbitration Coordinator shall schedule the arbitration hearing with the state 
and the Union representatives and the arbitrator listed next on the panel in rotation, and shall 
coordinate the arbitration hearing time, date, and location. 

(d) Arbitration hearings shall be scheduled as soon as feasible but not more than five 
months following the receipt of the Request for Arbitration Fonn. If the arbitrator initially selected is 
not available to schedule within this period, the Arbitration Coordinator shall contact succeeding 
arbitrators on the panel until an arbitrator is identified who can schedule within the prescribed period. 
A party may request of the a rbitrator, with notic.e to the other party and the Arbitration Coordinator. 
an extension of time/continuance based on documented unusual and compell ing circumstances. The 
Arbitration Coord inator sha ll schedule arbitration hearings at times and locations agreed to by the 
patties, taking into consideration the availability of evidence, location of witnesses, existence of 
appropriate facilities , and other relevant factors. If agreement cannot be reached, the arbitration 
hearing shall be held in the City of Tallahassee. 

(e) Where there is a threshold issue regarding arbitrability, including timeliness, of a 
grievance raised by either patty, an exped ited arbitration hearing shall be conducted to address on ly 
the arbitrability issue. In such cases, Jhe parties shall choose an arbitrator from the panel of 
arbitrators (see (6)(c) above), who is available to schedule a hearing and render a decision within I 5 
days of an arbitrator being chosen for this limited purpose. The hearing on this issue shall be limited 
to one day. and the arbitrator shall be requ ired to decide the issue within five business days of the 
hearing. The hearing shall be conducted by telephone upon the agreement of the parties and the 
arbitrator. The party losing the arbitrability issue shall pay the fees and expenses of the expedited 
arbitration. If the arbitrator determines that the issue is arbitrable, another arbitrator shall be chosen 
from the parties' regular arbitration panel in accordance with the provisions of(6)(c) of this Article 
to conduct a hearing on the substantive issue(s). 

(f) The arbitrator may fashion an appropriate remedy to resolve the grievance and, 
provided the decision is in accordance with his jurisdiction and authority under this Agreement, shall 
be final and binding on the state, the Union. the grievant(s), and the employees in the bargaining unit. 
In considering a grievance, the arbitrator shall be govemed by the following provisions and 
limitations: 

I. The arbitrator shall issue a decision not later than 22 days from the date or 
the closing of the hearing or the submission ofbriefs. whichever is later. 

2. The arbitrator·s decision shall be in writing, shall be deten'flined by 
appl)·ing a preponderance oftl:\e evidence staAdard, and shall set forth the arbitrator's op inion and 
conclusions on the precise issue(s) submitted. 

3. The arbitrator shall have no authority to detennine any other issue. and the 
arbitrator shall refrain from issuing any statement of opinion or conclusion not essential to the 
detennination of the issues submitted. 

6 



Teamsters Local201 I 
Proposal - Article 6 
December I 6, 2014 

4. The arbitrator shall limit the decis ion strictly to the application and 
interpretation ofthe specific provisions ofth is Agreement. 

5. The arbitrator shall be without power or authority to make any decisions: 

a. Contrary to or inconsistent with, adding to. subtracting from, or 
modifying, altering or ignoring in any way, the terms of this Agreement, or of applicable law o r rules 
or regulations having the force and effect of law; or 

b. Limiting or interfering in any way with the powers, duties, and 
responsibilities ofthe state under its Constitution, applicable law, and rules and regulations having 
the force and effect of law, except as such powers, duties, and responsibilities have been abtidged, 
delegated, or modified by the expressed provisions of this Agreement; or 

c. Which has the effect of restricting the discretion of an Agency 
Head as otherwise granted by law or the Rules of the State Personnel System unless such authority is 
modified by this Agreement; or 

d. That is based solely upon an agency past practice or policy w1less 
such agency practice or pol icy is contrary to law, the Rules of the State Personnel System. or this 
Agreement. 

6. The arbitrator's award may include back pay to the grievant(s): however. 
the following limitations shall apply to such monetary awards. 

a. An award for back pay shall not exceed the amount of pay the 
grievant would otherwise have earned at his regular rate of pay, shall be reduced by the amount of 
wages earned from other sources or monies received as reemployment assistance benefits during the 
back pay period, shall not include punitive damages, and shall not be retroactive to a date earlier than 
1 5 days prior to the date the grievance was initially filed. 

b. If tRe UflioR is graAted a eontiflt:tanee to resehedt:tle a.R a.rbitra.tioR 
keariAg over the objeetion of tke ageRey, tke ageRey win ROt be resJ3onsible for baelt pay for the 
J3eriod betweeR the origiAal heariRg date or tJ:te eREI of the five moRth period described iR (e)(d), 
abo't'e, aAd the reseJ:tedt:tlecl date .. 

(g) The fees and expenses of the arbitrator sha ll be borne solely by the party who fai Is 
to prevail in the hearing; however, each party shall be responsible for compensating and payin g the 
expenses oflts own representatives, attorneys and witnesses. Should the arbitrator fashion an award 
in such a manner that the grievance is sustained in part and denied in pat1, the state and Union wi ll 
even ly split the arbitrator's fee and expenses. The arbitrator shall submit his fee statement to the 
Arbitration Coordinator for processing in accordance with the arbitrator's contract. 

(h) A party may schedule a stenotype reporter to record the proceedings. Such party 
is respons ible for paying the appearance fee of the reporter, lfe itJ:ter party orclers a traRseriJ3t oftJ:te 
preeeedi1~gs, the party shal l J38}' for the east of the traflseriJ3t aAEI proviEie a photoeof'ly to the 
arbitrator. Tl~e party sha ll also pro·.·ide a photocopy of the traRseript to tAe ot"Rer party ttpoA writteA 
request and p8-)'A'ient ofcopyiA:g eMpenses ($.15 per page). A party ordering a transcript shall be 

7 



Teamsters Local 2011 
Proposal - Artic le 6 
December 16,201 4 

responsible for the cost of said transcript. If one or both parties order a transcript, both parties shall 
spl it the cost of providing a copy of the transcript for the arbitrator. 

( i) The Union will not be responsible for costs of an arbitration to which it was not a 
party. 

SECTION 4- Time Limits 

(A) Failure to init iate or appeal a grievance within the t ime limits specified shall be deemed a 
waiver of the grievance. 

(B) Fai lure at any step of this procedure to communicate the decision on a grievance within 
the specified t ime limit shall permit the employee, or the Union where appropriate, to proceed to the 
next step. A Ste p 2 or Step 3 answer that is not received by the Union by the written. agreed-to 
deadline does not alter the time limits for appealing a grievance to the nex1 step. 

(C) C laims of either an untime ly fi ling or untime ly appeal shall be made at the step 111 

question. 

SECTION 5- Exceptions 

(A) Nothing in this Article or e lsewhere in this Agreement shall be construed to permit the 
Union or an employee to process a grievance: (I) on beha lf of any employee without his consent, or 
(2) when the subject of such (employee's) grievance is, at the same time, the subject of an 
administrative action, an appeal before a governmental board or agency, or a court proceeding. 

(B) All grievances wi ll be presented at the Oral Ste p o•· Step 1, with the fo llowing exceptions: 

(1) rf a g rievance arises from the act1on of an official higher than the Step I 
Management Representative, the grievance shall be initiated at Step 2 or 3 as appropriate, by 
submitting a grievance fo rm as set to rth in Step 1 within 15 days fo llowing the occurrence of the 
event giving rise to the grievance. 

(2) The Union shall have the right to bring a class action grievance on beha lf of 
employees in its own name concerni ng disputes relating to the interpretation or applicati on of t his 
Agreement. Such grievance shall not inc lude disciplinary actions taken aga inst any employee. The 
Union's election to proceed under this Artic le shall preclude it from proceeding in another forum on 
the same issue. The elass aetiofl grie .. ·aAee shalllistlhe employees ad;•ersely impaeted 13:)' the d isp1:1te 
relatiflg to the ieterpretatioR or applieatioR of the 1\greemeRt. Such grievance sha ll be init iated at 
Step 2 of thi s procedure, in accordance with the provisions set f01th herein, within I 5 days of the 
occ\m·ence of t he event g iving rise to the grievance. 

(C) AR elflployee who has not attaiRed peffflaAeAt sffitt!S iR his et~rrent positioA may OR I)' file 
noR diseipline grievances. Non diseipline grievaAees filed b:,· probational)' employees are fi:Ral aJld 
bindiHg at Step 3 tmless the proeessiAg of s~:~eh grie¥aRees is further li1f1ited by speeifie pro't·isioAs of 
this 1\greemeAt. 



Article 7 

DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE 

SECTION 1 -Disciplinary Action 

Teamsters Local 20 II 
Proposal - Article 7 
November 21, 2014 

(A) An employee who has either: 1) attained permanent status in his current position; or 

2) is serving a probationary period in a position to which he has received an internal agency 

promotion, may be disciplined only for cause as provided in section II 0.227, Florida Statutes. 

Reductions in base pay, demotions, involuntary transfers of more thaA 50 miles by highway, 

suspensions, and dismissals may be effected by the state at any time against any employee. Such 

actions against employees with permanent status in their current position and emplovees serv ing 

a probationary period in a position to which they have received an internal agency promotion, for 

disciplinary reasons,. shall be grievable in accordance with the grievance procedure in Article 6. 
if the employee alleges that the action was not for just cause. However, any reduction in base pay 

required by the Rules of the State Personnel System shall not be grievable. Demotion will not be 
used as a form of disciplinary action for employees in the classes of Correctiona l Officer, 

Correctional Probation Officer. Correctional Probation Oftlcer-Tnstitution, or Institutional 
Security Specialist I. Disciplinary actions shall be subject to the grievance procedure as follows: 

(I) The state may issue Memoranda of Record, Memoranda of Counseling, or 

Supervisory Counseling Memoranda, which are documentation of minor work 

deficiencies or conduct concerns that are maintained by a supervisor in a working file. for 

a period of time not to exceed one year from the date of issuance. Such documents are not 

discipline, are not grievable, and shall not become part of the employee' s official 
personnel file; l=lowever, s~eh doe~meAmtion may be used b)' the state at afl 

admiAistrati,.·e heariAg ia~·ohiag ar. employee' s diseipl iae to de.monstrate the employee 

was on notice of the performance deficiencies or cond~et concerns. In Community 
Corrections. only the circuit administrator has the authority to issue Memoranda of 

Record. Memoranda of Counseling, and/or Supervisory Counseling Memoranda. 

(2) Written reprimands may be grieved by employees with permanent status in 
their current position. and by employees serving a probationary period in a position to 
which they have received an internal ae.ency promotion, up to Step; 2.; the decision at 
that level shall be final and binding. 

(a) Since a written reprimand is not subject to arbitration. pursuant to 
the terms of this Article, it is only valid for a period of one-year after the 
date it is issued to an employee. and it is automatically invalid one-year 

and a day after its issuance. 



Teamsters Local 20 II 
Proposal - Article 7 
November 21 , 2014 

(b) Although the written reprimand is automatically invalid one-year 

and a day after its issuance, by operation of this Article. an employee may 

request, in writing to the custod ian of hi s personnel file, that the written 

reprimand be placed in an envelope in his personnel file. The envelope 
shall be sealed, stamped "NOT VALID." and retained in the emplovee ' s 

personnel file as specified in the State of Florida General Records 

Schedule GS l-SL for State and Local Government Records .. as 

promulgated by the. Department of State. In the event that the written 

reprimand has been maintained as an electronic document, a note shall be 

added to the electron ic document indrcating that the written reprimand is 

invalid. Nothing in this paragraph shal l be construed so as to undermine 

the automatic invalidity ofthe written reprimand one-year and a day after 

its issuance. A written reprimand is, by operation of this Article, 
automatically invalid one-year and a day after its issuance, and it is not 

necessary foran employee to request that the written reprimand be placed 

in an envelope and stamped ''NOT VALID.' ' for it to be invalid. 

(c) After a written reprimand becomes invalid. it shall not be used by 
the state as part of progressive discipline. nor shall it be used by the state 

in any subsequent discipline of the employee and/or disciplinary 

proceeding including but not limited administrative hearings. mediation, 
and arbitration. 

(3) For all types of discipline besides written repr imands, the discip li ne shall 

remain valid for a period of time not to exceed five years after the date of issuance. The 

discipli ne is automatically invalid five-years and a day after the date it was issued, and it 
shal l not be used by the state as part of progressive discipline, nor shall it be used by the 

state in any subsequent discipline of the employee and/or discipl inary proceeding 

including but not limited administrative hearings, mediation, and arbitration. 

(4) The state may not charge an employee with more than one violation of 

applicable rules of conduct, admini strative code. policies. procedures, guidelines, 
directives and/or statutes for an employee's conduct (whether action or inaction) in 
regard to singular occurrence and/or transaction. The disciplinary authority must charge 
the employee with only one vio lation, and if the employee' s alleged conduct could 

potentially violate more than one statute, rule. policy. procedure and/or directive, the 

disciplinary authority must charge the employee with the violation that most spec ifically 
concerns the conduct at issue. [tis within the disciplinary authoritv's discretion to 

determine which vio lat ion most specifically concerns the conduct at issue. 

2 



Teamsters Local 2011 
Proposal - Article 7 
November 21. 2014 

(8) A complaint by an emplovee who is serving a probationary period in a position to 

wh ich he has received an internal agency promotion concerning a reduction in base pay, 

suspension. involuntary transfer, demotion. or dismissal may be grieved at Step 2 and processed 

through the Arbitration Step. in accordance with the Grievance Procedure in Article 6 ofthis 

Agreement. An employee with permanent status in his current position may file an appeal of a 
reduction in base pay, suspension, involuntary transfer of over 50 miles by highway, demotion, 

or dismissal with the Public Employees Relations Commission (" PERC") within 21 ca lendar 

days after the date of receipt of notice of such action from the agency, by personal delivery or by 

certified mai I, return receipt requested. under the provisions of section II 0.227(5) and (6), 

Florida Statutes. In the alternative, a complaint by an employee w ith permanent status in his 

current position concern ing a reduction in base pay. suspension. invo luntary transfer of over 50 

miles by highway, demotion. or dismissal may be grieved at Step 2 and processed through the 
Arbitration Step, in accordance with the Grievance Procedure in Article 6 of this Agreement. 

(C) Where a disciplinary action may be appealed to PERC the .Pualie employees 

R~lations Commission and is also grievab le under this Agreement, the employee shall indicate at 

the time the grievance is reduced to writing which procedure is to be used and such decision 
shall be binding on the employee. In the case of any duplicate filing, the action first filed will be 

the one processed. 

(D) For disciplinary suspensions, the following sha ll apply: 

( I ) If the agency issues a disciplinary suspension to an employee and the 

employee files an appeal to PERC the- Public Emplo)·ees Relati oAs Commission (PeRC) 
in the required 21 calendar days from the date the employee receives the letter, or tiles a 

co llective bargaining grievance within the time limits set fo1th in Article 6 of this 

Agreement, the agency shall have the option to stay the suspension for up to 90 calendar 
days pending a Recommended or Final Order by PERC, or a decision/award from an 

arbitrator. If the Department of Corrections agency stays the suspens ion, and PERC has 
not issued a Recommended or Final Order, or an arbitrator has not rendered a 

decision/award by the end of the period for which the suspens ion was stayed, the agency 
may proceed with the disciplinary suspension. 

(2) In lieu of serv ing a disciplinary suspension. an agert~ry• employee, at his sole 
and exclusive discretion, may elect to have spec ial compensatory leave equal to the 

length of a disciplinary suspension deducted from his employee ' s leave balance in lieu of 
the emplo)·ee serving the suspension. In maldrtg such aetermiAation, the agency shall taiEe 

into coi'lsideratjon the prefere1~ee of the employee as to serYing the suspension or having 

lea't'e deducted. If the employee does not have sutlicient special compensatory leave, 
annual leave may be deducted. If there is not sufficient special compensatory or annual 

leave, tJ1e remainder of the period will be leave w ithout pay. Employees from whom 



Teamsters Local 2011 
Proposal - Article 7 
November 21, 2014 

leave is deducted wi ll continue to report for duty. The employee's personnel file will 
reflect a disciplinary suspension regardless of whether the employee serves the 

suspension or has leave deducted. 

SECTION 2- Interrogation during Internal Investigations 

In the course of any internal investigation, the interrogation methods employed will be 

consistent with sections 11 2.532 and section 112.533, Florida Statutes. 

(A) Definitions 

For the purpose of this section the following definitions of terms as used in section 
112.532. Florida Statutes. shall apply: 

(I) "Interrogation" refers to a disciplinary investigation meeting with respect to an 

incident or complaint between a member of management or supervision, including an 

investigator. and an employee covered by this Agreement in which the information to be 

obtained at the investigation meeting will be the basis for the decision as to whether to 

suspend or dismiss the employee. It does not include counseling sessions, or 

investigations, which may result in lesser forms of disciplinary action or meetings at 

which the employee is so lely being advised of intended disciplinary action. and offered 
an opportunity to explain why he should not be disciplined. 

(2) i'Complainants" refers to the complaining or charging party relative to an 
incident, complaint, or reason. 

(B) Procedures 

Whenever an employee covered by this Agreement is under investigation and subject to 

interrogation by members of his agency for any reason, which could lead to disciplinary action, 
suspension, demotion. or dismissal. such interrogation shall be conducted under the following 
conditions: 

( l) The intenogation shall be conducted at a reasonable hour, preferably at a time 

when the employee is on duty, unless the seriousness of the investigation is of such a 
degree that immediate action is required. 

(2) The interrogation shall take place either at the o'ffice of the command of the 
investigating officer or correctional unit in which the incident allegedly occurred, as 
designated by the investigating officer or agency. 

(3) The employee under investigation shall be informed of the rank, name. and 
command of the officer in charge ofthe investigation, the interrogating officer, and all 

4 



Teamsters Local 20 II 
Proposal- Article 7 
November 21,20 14 

persons present during the interrogation. All questions directed to the officer under 
interrogation shall be asked by and through one interrogator at any one time. 

(4) The employee under investigation shall be informed of the nature of the 

investigation prior to any interrogation. and he shall be informed of the name of all 

complainants. 

(5) Interrogating sessions shall be for reasonable periods and shall be timed to 

allow for such personal necessities and rest periods as are reasonably necessary for both 

the employee and the representative. 

(6) The employee under interrogation sha ll not be subjected to offensive language 
or be threatened with transfer, dismissal, or disciplinary action. No promise or reward 

shal l be made as an inducement to answer any questions. 

(7) The formal interrogation of an employee, including all recess periods, shall be 

recorded, and there shall be no unrecorded questions or statements. Upon the request of 

the inteJTogated officer, a copy of any such recording of the interrogation se.ssion must be 

made available to the interrogated officer no later than 72 hours, excluding holidays and 
weekends, following said interrogation. 

(8) If the employee under interrogation is under arrest, or is likely to be placed 

under arrest as a result of the interrogation, he shall be completely informed of all his 

rights prior to the commencement of the interrogation. 

(9) At the request of any employee under investigation. he shall have the right to 

be represented by counsel or any other representative of his choice, who shall be present 
at all times duriog such interrogation whenever the intermgation relates to the officer's 
continued fitness fo r correctional service. 

(I 0) Where the agency determines that a complaint is unsupported by the facts or 

is otherwise without merit. or determines that the facts are insufficient to charge or 
otherwise discipline the employee under investigation. such conclusion will be so noted 
as part of the investigative record. Written documents relative to the investigation are 

Sl!bject to the provisions of Article 12, Personnel Records. 

(I J) Where the employee is the subject of the investigation, the employee sha ll be 
provided the opportunity to review all written statements made by the complainant and 
witnesses immediately prior to the beginning of the investigation interview. 

(C) Unless required by statute, no employee shall be required to submit to a polygraph 
test or any device designed to measure the truthfulness of his .response during an investigatjon of 

5 



Teamsters Local 20 I I 
Proposal- Article 7 
November 21. 2014 

a complaint or allegation. If an employee is offered an opportunity to submit to a polygraph test. 

the employee's refusal wi II not be referred to in any fina l action taken by the agency. 

(D) Alleged violations of the investigative rights provided for in this section by an 

employee or the Union shall be investigated by the agency. The agency shall provide the 

employee and the Union with an explanation concerning the alleged vio lation and corrective 

action taken. ifany. 

(E) The state will make a good faith effot1 to complete all internal investigations within 

60 ca lendar days from the date the investigation is assigned to the investigator. Except in the 
case of a criminal investigation, the employee shal l be notified in writing of any investigation 

that exceeds 120 calendar days. The employee under investigation shall be advised of the results 

of the investigation at its conclusion. 

(F) The provisions of this section may be grieved in accordance with Article 6, up to Step 

3 of the Grievance Procedure: the decision at that step shall be final and binding. 

(G) In cases where the agency determines that the employee's absence from the work 

location is essential to the investigation and the employee cannot be reassigned to other duties 
pend ing completion of the investigation. the employee shall be placed on ad mi nistrative leave in 

accordance with Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code. In cases where an employee has 

been reassigned by the Department of Corrections pending the outcome of an investigation and 
the charges or allegations against the employee are not sustained, the reassigned employee shall 

be offered the option to return to the original work locati on and, if requested, the previously held 

shift and days off as soon as they become available. As an exception, the Department may retain 

the employee in the reassigned work location if it determines that information has been produced 

in the course of its investigation of the charges that evidences a substantial I ikel ihood of 
interference with the operations of the work unit if the employee is returned to the original work 

location. 

SECTION 3- Employee Copy 

Each employee shall be furnished a copy of all disciplinary entries placed in his official 
personnel file and shal l be permitted to respond thereto, and a copy of the employee's response 

shall be placed in the employee's personnel file. 

SECTION 4- Notice 

Notice of reduction in base pay, demotion. involuntary transfer of more than 50 miles by 

highway, suspension, or dismissal affecting an employee who has satisfactorily completed at 
least a one-year probationary period in his current position shall be in accordance with section 
II 0.227(5). Florida Statutes. An employee who is serv ing a probationary period in a position to 

6 



Teamsters Local 2011 
Proposal - Article 7 
November 2 1, 20 14 

which he has received an internal agency promotion shall receive written notice of a reduction ih 

base pay, demotion. involuntary transfer of more than 50 miles by highway. suspension, or 

dismissal at least I 0 days prior to the date such action is to be taken. Subsequent to such notice. 

and prior to the date the action is to be taken. the affected employee shall be given an 
opportunity to appear before the agency or official taking the action to answer oral ly and in 

writing the charges against him or her. The notice to the employee required by this paragraph 

may be delivered to the employee personall y or may be sent by certified mail with return receipt 
requested. 

SECTION 5- Representation 

Where union representation is requested by an employee during an investigation by the 
agency Inspector General's Office, or during a predetermination conference, a union steward will 

be allowed a reasonable amount of accrued leave, other than sick leave, to attend such meetings, 

subject to prior approval by the steward ' s immediate supervisor. Such leave will be approved if 

the steward can be allowed leave without interfering with, or unduly hampering, the operati ons 
of the unit to which the steward is regularly assigned. Where an employee is represented by a 

Union Representative in a predetermination conference, the Union Representative shall be 

notified of the disposition of the predetermination conference. 

7 



Ar·ticlt 8 
WORK FORCE REDUCTION 

SECTION I - Layoffs 

Teamsters Local 20 I I 
Proposal - Article 8 
December 16, 2014 

(l\) When employees are to be laid off as defined in the Florida Statutes. the state shall 
implement such layo !T in the fi.1Jiowing m~nner: 

(I) The competitive area for the bargaining unit shal l be statewide unless the 
Oepat1ment and Union agree otherwise. 

(2) Layoff shall be by class or occupational level within the Security Services 
Bargaining Unit. 

(3) An employee who has not attained permanent status in his current pos ition 
may be laid off without applying the provision fo r retention rights. 

(4) Nu employee with permanent status in his current position shall be laid otT 
while an employee who does not hold permanent status in his current position is serving in that 
class or level unless the permanent employee does not elect to exercise hi s retention rights or 
does not meet the se lective competition criteria. 

(5) All employees who have pei·manent status in their current positions shall be 
ranked on a layoff list for the affected class or level based on the tntal retention points derived as 
follows: 

(a) Length of service retention points shall be based on one pL)int for each 
month of continuous service in a Career ervice position. 

L An employee who resigns from one Career ~ervice position tn 
accept employment in another Career Service position is not considered to have a break in 
Service. 

2. An employee who has been laid off and is reemployed within 
one year from the date of the layoff shall not be considei·ed to have a break in service. 

3. Moving from Career Service to Selected Exempt Service or 
Senior Management Service and back to Career Service does not constitute a break in service 
unless the employee's break in service is more than 31 calendar days. Only time spent in the 
Career Service is counted in calculating retention points . 

(b) Retention points deducted for performance not meeting pei·tormance 
standards or yvork expectations defined for the position shall be based on the fi ve years 
immedia(ely prior to the agency's established cutoff date. Five points shall be deducted for each 
mot1th an employee has a rating below performance expectations. 

(6) The Jayoft' list shall he prepared by totu!ing retention points. Employees 
eligible for veterans' preference pursuant to section 295.07( t )(a) or (b). Florida Statutes. shall 



Teamsters Local 20 ll 
Proposal - Article 8 
December 16, 20 14 

ha¥e ten percent added to their total retention points, and those eligible pursuant to section 
295.07( I ){c) or (d). fl orida Statutes. shall have tive percent added. 

(7) The employee with the highest total retemion points is placed at the top of the 
list. and the employee with the lowest retention points is placed at the bottom of the li st. 

(8 ) The employee at the top of the list shall bump the etnployee at the bottom of 
the li st. The next highest employee on the list and the remaining employees shC~ II be handled in 
the same manner until the total number of filled positions in the class to be abo li shed is 
complete. 

(9) Should two or more employees have the same combined tota l of retention 
points. the order or layoff shall be determined by giving preference fo r retention in the fo llowing 
sequence: 

(a ) The employee with the longest service in the affected class. 

(b) The employee with the longest continuous service in the Career 
Service. 

(c) The employee who is entit led to veterans· preference pursuant to 
section :295.07(1). Florida Statutes. 

( I 0) An employee who has permanent status in his ~urrent position and is to be 
laid ofT shall be given at least 14 ca lendar days noti ce of such layoff or tW() weeks' pay, or a 
combination of days of notice and pay. Any payment will be made at the employee·s current 
hourl y base rate of pay. The tJorice of layoff shall be in writ ing and sent to the employee by 
certified maiL return receipt requested. Within seven ca lendar days after rece iving the notice of 
layoff. the employee shall have the right to request. in writing, a dt:moti on or ;·eassignment 
within the competitive area in lieu of layoff to a pos ition in a c lass within the bargaining unit in 
which the employee he ld permanent status. or to a position in a class at the level of or below the 
class in the bargaining unit in which the employee held pem1anent status. 

( II ) An employee's reqLJest for demotion or reass ignment shall be granted unless 
it would cause the layoff of another employee who possesses a greater total of retention points. 

( 12) A n employee adverse l) affected as a result of another employee having a 
greater number of retention points shall have the same ri ght of reass ignment or demotion under 
the same procedure a:s prov ided in this section. 

( 13) IC an employee request~ a demotion or reassignment in lieu of layoff. the 
same fonmlla and criteria tot· establishing retention points fo r that class shall be used as 
prescribed in this section. 

(13 ) If there is to be a layoff of employees. the state shall take all reasonable steps to place 
any adversely afTected employees in existing vacancies for which they are qualincd. 

2 



Teamsters Loc.al 20 II 
Proposal -Article 8 
December 16, 20 14 

((' ) If work performed by employees in thi s unit is to be pedo rmed by non-state 
employees: the state agrees to encourage the employing entity to consider any adverse ly affected 
unit employees for employment in its organization i f the state has heen unable to place the 
employees in other positions within the State Personnel System . . 

SECTION 2- Job Security 

The state shall make a reasonable effort to notifY the Union at least 30 days in ad.,·ance of 
classes within the bargaining unit that .,.,·ill be involved in a ln;·off. and of the scheduled closing: 
of a correcti onal facility or specific unit Lhereof. Prior to the actual la;·off or scheduled closing, 
the state wi II meet w:ith the Union to discuss the effect of the Ia;· off on the emf3loyees invoiYed. 

(A) In no event shall any bargaining unit employee who customarily performs the work 
in question be laid off as a direct and immediate result of the work being performed by any 

outside contractor on premises of any major institution or probation and parole office. 

(B) If the state sells. leases. transfers or assigns any of its functions, the state shall 
inform the purchaser, lessee or successor of the exact terms of this Agreement and shall make the 
sale, lease, t ransfer or assignment conditional on the successor assuming all the conditions and 
obligations of this agreement, including but not limited to the retention of all emplovees. Any 
sale, lease, transfer or assignment shall include a provision requiring the successor to be bound 
by all the provisions of this agreement until its next expiration date. at which time the successor 
organization will recognize and negotiate with this union and no other employee organization. 

SECTION 3 - Recall 

When a vacancy occurs. or a new position is established. laid otT employees sha ll be 
recalled in the following manner: 

(A) r or one year to llowing layoff. when a position is to be filled or a new pos ition is 
established in the same agency and in the same class within the affected competitive area. a laid 
off employee "vith the highest number or retention points shall be offered reemployment: 
subsequent offers shall be made in the order of an employee's total retention points. 
Reemploymt::.nt of such employee~ shall be with pennancnt status in their pos ition. An employee 
who refuses such offer of reemployment shall forfe it any rights to subsequent placement offers 
as provided in this subsection. 

(8) An employee who accepts a voluntary demotion in lieu of layoff' and is subsequently 
promoted to a position in the same class in the same agency. rrom which the employee was 
demoted in lieu or layoff. shall be promoted with pemlancnt status in the position. 

(C) Under no circumstances is a layoff to be considered a disc iplinary action. and in the 
event an employee elects to appeal the action taken. such appeal must be ba~ed upon whether the 
layoff-was in accordance with the provisions of' th is A rticle. 

3 



4 

Teamsters Local 20 I I 
Proposal -Article 8 
December 16, 2014 



Article 9 

Teamsters Local 20 II 
Proposal - Artic le 9 
December 16. 2014 

REASSIGNMENT, TRANSFER, CHANGE IN DUTY STATION 

Employees who ha ve atlained permanent status in their current position and who meet all 
~ligibility requi rements shal l have the opportunity to request reassignment. transfe r. or change in 
Jut) station to vacant positions with in theit· respective agenc ies in accordance with the 
provision. ofthi s Article. 

SECTION 1-Definitions as used in this Article: 

(A) "Duty station" sha ll mean the place which is designated as an employee's officia l 
headquarters. 

(B) "Change in duty station" shall mean the moving of an employee to a duty s ta~ ion 
loca ted within 50 miles, by highway. of his ctment duty station. 

(C) "Broadband level" shall mean all positions sufficiently similar in knowledge. skills. 
and abilities. and sufficiently similar as tl) kind or subject matter of work. level of difficulty or 
responsibilities. and qualificati on ruquirements of the work. I t) warrant the same treatment as to 
title. pay band. and other personnel transactions. 

(D) "Reassignment" shall mean moving an employee fi·om a position in one broadband 
level to a diffe rent position in the same broadband level or to a different broadband level having 
the same max imum sa lary. 

(E) "Transfer" shall mean moving an employee from one geographic area of the state to a 
different geographic location in excess of 50 miles. by highway. from the employee's current 
duty station. 

(F) "Agency needs" are those actions taken by an agency in order to meet its miss ion of 
rrotecting the pub! ic. providing a safe and humane environment for stan· and offenders, working 
in pat1nershi p with the community to provide programs and services to offenders. and 
supervising offenders at a leve l of security commensurate with the danger they present. 

(G) ''Major institution" shall mean in the Department of Cot1·cctions. the main raci lity 
under the control of one warden, and will include the annexes, work camps. release centers, and 
other sate llite/sister fac ilities under the authority of that main fac ility warden. 

SECTION 2 - Procedures 

(A) An employee who has attained permanent status in his current position may apply for a 
reassignment, transfer, or change in duty station on a Request for Reassignment, Transfer, or Change 
in Duty Station Form (supplied by the agency). Such requests shall indicate county(ies), 
institution(s), and/or other work location(s) or shift(s) to which the employee would like to be 
reassigned. An emj:)loyee t'flay only reEJt~est reassignment, transfer, or el'lange in dl:lt}· station from one 
major institlftion to another l'flajor institlftion iA his agency. A State of Florida Employment 
Application Fotm must be completed and sent with the Request Form. 

(13 ) An employee may submit a Request for Reass ignment f om1 at any time: however. a ll 
such requests shall expire on May 3 1 of each calendar year. Requests can be filed in May to 
become effective on .June I. 

(C') All Request for Reassignment Forms shall be submitted to the Agency Head or 



Teamsters Local 20 ll 
Proposal - Article 9 
December 16, 2014 

designee who shall be reSpl>nsible fo r furnishing a copy of each such request lo tht: manager(s) or 
supervisor( s} who have the authority to make employee hiring decisions in the work unit to 
which the employee has requested reass ignment. 

(D) Except "vhere a vacancy is filled by demotion. the manager or supervisor hav ing 
hiring authority for that vacancy shall give tirst consideration to employees who have submitted 
a Request lor Reassignment Form: provided. however, that employees whose request for 
reassignment is not submitted by the first day of the month shall not be considered for vacancies 
which occur during that month . 

(E) The hiring authority shall normally till a vacancy with the employee who has the 
greatest length of service in the bn..)adband level and who has a Request for Reassignment f"orm 
on fi le for· the vacancy. The par1 ies agree. however. that other factors. such as employees' work 
history and agency needs, will be taken into considerati<,m in making the decision as to whether 
the employee with tht! greatest length of service in the broadband level will be placed in the 
vacant position. 

(F) lfthe employee with the greatest length of service in the broadband level is not 
selected for the vacant position. all employees who have greater length of service in the 
broadband level than the employee se lected shal l be notified in writing of the agency's decision. 

(G) When an employee has been reass igned pursuant to a request til ed under this Article. 
all other pending requests for reas~ignment from that employee shall be canceled. No other 
request for reass ignment may be filed by the employee under this Article for a period of 12 
months fo llowing the employee's reass ignment. If an employee" declines an offer of 
reassignment pursuant to a request filed under this Article. the employee's request shall he 
canceled and the employee is not eligible to resubm it that request for a peri od of 12 months from 
the elate the employee declined the offer of reassignment. 

SECTION 3- Involuntary Reassignment, Tr·ansfer, or Change in Duty Station 

(A} Noth ing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent an agency, at its 
discretion, from effecting the invo luntary reassignment, transfer, or change in duty station of an 
employee according to the needs of the agency.,.; however. the agency will make a good faith 
effort to take such action only when dictated by the needs of the agencv. and in each case. will 
take into consideration the needs and circumstances of the employee prior to taking such action. 
For the Department of Corrections_ Article 23. Section 2CB)(2)a of this Agreement applies. 

(B) In those instances where the Department of Corrections determines that an excessive 
caseload at a probation office requires the reassignment of an officer, the Department will 
eonsider requests from volunteers. employee seniority, and tl=le needs of the ageney iR making 
sueh reassignment. such reassignment shall first be made on a volunteer basis. and next. on the 
basis of seniority with the least senior officer subject to reassignmen t. 

SECTION 4- Notice 

An employee shal l be given a minimum of 14 calendar days noricc prior to the agency 
etTecting any reass ignment or transfer of the employee. In the case of a transfer. the agency wi ll 
make a good t:'l ith effo rt to give a n1inimum of 30 calendar days noti ce. The parties agree. 
however, that these notice requirerm:nts shall not be required during an emergency or other 
extraordinary condi tion. 



SECTION 5 -Relocation Allowance 

Teamsters Local 20 I I 
Proposal ~Article 9 
December 16, 2014 

An employee who is reassigned and required by agency p0l icy to relocate his residence 
shall be granted time off with pay for one (I) workday for this purpose. In additi<m, the employee 
shall be granted travel time to the new location based on the most direct route. No employee will 
be credi ted \·Vith more than the number of hours in the employee's regular workday and such time 
shall not be counted as hour:; W<wked for the purpose of computing compensatory time or 
overtime. 

SECTION 6 C FieYability 

The pro·tisions of this Article shall not be s~bjest to the grie .. ·ance proced~:~eres of Article e 
of this Agreement; howe¥er, an employee eoFAplaint eoneeming improper application of the 
fiscal Year 20 l2 13 Teamsters See~rity SePt' ices Unit Suceessor Agreement 
pro .. ·isions of Section 2(E), Section 3, and Seetim'l 4 rna;· ee grie·red in accordance with i\rtiele e. 
up to and includil'lg Step 3 of the grievance proeed~re. In considering such complaints, weight 
sh.all be given to the speeifie proeedtues follo'Ned and deeisions maae, along with the needs of 
tl'le agency. 



Article 11 

Teamsters Local 201 I 
Proposal - Article 11 -Status Quo 

November 21,2014 

CLASSlFlCATlON REVIEW 

(A) When an employee alleges that he is being regularly required to perform duties 
which are not included in the position description of his position, and the employee alleges that 
the duties assigned are not inc luded in the official Career Service class spec ification to which the 
position is allocated, the employee may request in 'Arriting that the Agency Head review the 
duties assigned to the employee's position. The Agency I lead Ot' designee shall review the duties 
as requested. The employee will receive a copy of the written decision with in 60 days of the 
request. lithe dec ision is that the duties assigned are sufficient lo justify rec lass ify ing the 
position, either the position will be reclassified or the duties in queStion will be removed. 
Shortage of funds shall not be used as the basis tot refusing to reclassify a position after a review 
has been completed. 

(B) If the employee is not sati sti ed with the decision. the employee. with or without 
representation, may request in writing a review by the Secretary of the Department of 
Management Services or designee. The review wi ll be in accordance with Chapter II 0. Florida 
Statutes. 

(C) The written decision of the Secretary of the Department of Management Services 
or designee as to the classification ofthe po ition shall be final and binding on all parties. 



SECTION 1 - Personnel Files 

Article 12 
PERSONNEL RECORDS 

Teamsters Local 2011 
Proposal - Article 12 - Status Quo 

November 2 1, 2014 

(A) There shall be only one official personnel file for each employee, which sholl be 
maintained by the employing agency. Information in an employee's ofticial personnel tile shall 
onl y refer to matters concerning (affecting) the employee's job or related to his state 
employment. 

(B) II' derogatory material is placed in an employee's official personnel tile, a copy 
will be sent to the employee. The employee will have the ri ght to answer any such material liled. 
and the answer will be attached to the lile copy. 

(C) An employee will have the right to review his offi cial personnel file and any 
duplicate personnel files at reasonable times under the supervision of the designated records 
custodian, or may rcquc. l a copy of hi s tile which will be provided at no cost to the employee so 
long as such request is made no more frequently than every 12 months. 

(D) Where the Agency J lead or designee. the Public Employees Relations 
Commission. the courts. an arbitrator, or other statutory authority determines that a document has 
been placed in rhe employee's personnel file in error or is othervvise invalid, such document shall 
be placed in an envelope together with a letter of explanation. The enve lope shall be sealed. 
stam ped "NOT VALID". and retained in the t:mployee's personnel lilc as spec ified in the State or 
Florida General Records Schedule GS 1-SL for State and Local Government Records. as 
promulgated by the Department of State. In the case of electronic records. a Personnel At:tion 
Request (P.A R) that has been determined to be invalid shall have a note added to the PAR form 
indicating that th t:! action was inva lid. 



SECTION 1 - Safety Committee 

Article 13 
SAFETY 

Teamsters Local 20 II 
Proposal- Article 13 

October 15, 2014 

(A) It shall be the pol icy of the state to make every reasonable effort to provide 
employees a safe and healthy working environment. 

(B) Where management has created a safety committee in a state-controlled facility, the 
employees shall select at least one person at the facility to serve on such committee. 

(C) Where management has not established a safety committee both the state and Union 
shall work toward the establishment of one in each state-control led faci lity. 

SECTION 2- Employee Safety 

(A) An employee who becomes aware of a work-related accident shall immediately 
notify the supervisor of the area where the incident occurred. 

(B) When an employee bel ieves that an unsafe working condition exists in the work area, 
the employee shall immediately rep011 the condition to the supervisor. The supervisor shall 
investigate the report and make a reasonable effort to take action deemed appropri ate. 

{C) l'hl" stu tc: express!\. a1:1.recs to abide b'< Lhc terms of Chapter '87. Part IL Florida 
Sta tutes and Chapll.!r 60B- I. f- lorida Adm inistrali vc Code. \Vith regard ::,tate-tlwned ,,ehicks. 

(D) 'I he Department of' Corrections agrees to abide b\ the terms of Procedure Number 
604.10 L inclutlin£ ~pccilic Procedures 604.20 I ( I )( c). under ''Procurement of Vehic les,'· 
604.10 1(4). ·'Usc and Control of Vehicles ... and 604.201(5), "General. EmerQcncv. Major 
Repairs. and PreventatiH· and Essential Maintenance:· which are full v im:orporated herein b\ 

reference. 

! [:) laintaining adequate securitv staffing levels is criticalh important to the sa l'etv of 
o nicers '" orking_ in the Department· s corr~ctional institutions and sate II itcs. Under no 
circun1stances will an\ shift.. defined for usc in this ParaQraph as .:111 employee's regular dailY 
work period. beb!.in bdm\ Le\ el I staffing or be allO\H:d to IW belO\\ this k vo.:: l cxc~pL in t·are 
cases or extreme emer!!encv. 

I . l'hc Union has the right to raise and discuss issues of securit)- stafTinl.!. k~\.els 
and/or the applicable rel.!.ion 's (or regions·) current DC6-292. but 1.mh \\ ith regard 
to impad of staffinu levels on emplo,cc saretY. 



Teamsters Local 20 11 
Proposal - Article 13 

October 15, 2014 

.., No emplovee in the bar!.!ainim!. un it to'vered bv this Agreement shall be 
reta liated a!!ainsl or disl"iplincJ for reportin£ a conccm about the <.~dl.:quaq ol' 

~~curity ~li:lfling kvt:ls and his inst itut ion. 

( I·) The partie" acknowlede.e and agree that all safety equipment. intluding but not 
limited to bulletpro~li'Vt>Sb and radios. provided to the bargaining unit members by the state must 
be proper!\' maintained and in uood \vorking order. 

SECTION 3-Grievability 

Complaints which arise under the application or interpretation of this Article shall be 
grievable, but only up to Step 3 of the grievance procedure of the Agreement. \\ ith the ex<.:eption 
of tompla ints arisinll under the application or intcrprctaliun or S01.0tion 1 ( CH F) t'r th i:, Artick. 
!'hose complaints v, hich arise in regard to the application or interpretation or· Sectilln ..,( CH F) or 
this Article sha ll be subjet:tto the entirety ofrhe !!.rievance and arbitration procedure in /\ rt ide 6 
of this 1\urt.:cmcnt. 

SECTION 4- Communicable Diseases 

(A) In institutions, centers, and units in which inmates and/or patients with AIDS or other 
communicable diseases are isolated due to their condition, employees entering such areas shall 
have such protective wear and equipment made avai lable to them as is made availab le to health 
care employees work ing in that area. 

(B) Employees shall not be required to handle, examine, or test materials from the human 
body of inmates, offenders, or clients under their supervision except in accordance with the rules 
and regulations of the agency regarding the handling and testing of such materials. 

(C) The agenc ies shall make available to employees a procedure to screen for 
tuberculosis (PPD SKIN TEST). Alternatively. the employee may at his own cost, have such test 
performed by a private physician and provide the results of the test to the agency. 

SECTION 5- Correctional P robation Officer Safety 

Correctional probation officers, upon the approval oftheir immediate superv isor, shall be 
provided with the following safety equipment: bulletproof vest~ and a hand~held rad io,- and/or a 
cellular telephone. 

L As a normal !'unction of his position, a correctional probation officer mav be 
required to engage in fit::ld supervision and investigation in a !!eographic area thal lat;b 
<:~ueyu<.He cellular te lephone reception to enable the otlil"er to call tor back-up and/or 
··91 , .. in the event of a threm to his ph\·$ical ~a let v. 1\ccordim.!lv. i r <1 pro bat inner anJ/ur 
parolee reside~ in an ueo!.!raphical area thnt lack:; adequate cellular telephone receptilW. 

2 



Teamsters Local 20 11 
Proposa l - Article 13 

October 15. 2014 

the officer responsible for sn id probationer"s nnd/or pnrolee·s supervision wil l be 
p~rmiued. upLm request to his immediate supen isc11·. tu catT\ a band-hdd radio in 
addition to a cellular telephone in perform in!! field supervision nnd investit!ation of said 
pwba1 ioner and/or parolee. 

L An officer who is certi fi ed to carry a firearm, and chooses to carry, may be 
authorized to carry a tirearm his department approved weapon while on duty. When 
carrying ins ide the probation and paro le office the firearm shall , at a ll t imes, be concealed 
on the officer's person or secured in the official office lock-box immediately upon 
entering the probation and parole offi ce. 
l'hc parties auknov.ledge that the Department or Correct i on~. has inc luded signitieant 

adJitiunal re1;uun:e::. f'or rad io communication:; sy:;tem replacement and staffing, as well as 
funding ofrt:'Curring uu:H::. l'ur :;oA bucl:v 1:1nnor. in its Fi:.cal Year 20 13 l l Legi!;lali\ e Budgel 
Reque!il. 

SECTION 6- Personal Weapons 

(A) The Department of Corrections may, upon written request, provide weapons lockers 
to employees who are a lso employed outside the Department as an auxiliary po lice officer or 
deputy and are required to carry these weapons to perform their duties. 

(B) The Department of Corrections authorizes employees to carry one handgun to work 
in private vehi c les and park such vehicles on the department grounds provided the handgun is 
secured in the vehicle and maintained jn a standard handgun lockbox in accordance with the 
following: 

( I) Only one handgun per vehicle/per lockbox. 
(2) T he handgun must be stored in a lockbox that is designed to ho ld a handgun 

and can be locked; an empty ammunition box or me tal coin box, or a glove compartment 
are not lockboxes for this purpose. 

(3)The doors and windows ofthe veh icle must lock ifthe lockbox is kept in the 
cab of the vehicle. lfthe cab of the veh ic le can be accessed from the trunk, the trunk must 
lock. T he trunk must be locked at all times. 

(4) The lockbox cannot be placed in a metal toolbox on a truck. 
(5) For convettibles, the lockbox must be placed in the trunk. If the veh icle is a 

Jeep or similar vehicle. with no top and no trunk, the officer cannot carry a handgun. 

(C) Only the ammunition necessary to load the handgun to capacity will be allowed in the 
lockbox. It is the officer's choice whether the handgun is loaded or the ammunition is separate, 
but both must be in the lockbox and locked. 

(D) At no time will the employee leave the vehicle unlocked while the handgun is in the 

vehic le and parked on state grounds. 

3 



SECTION J-Leaves 

Article 18 
LEAVES OF ABSENCE 

Teamsters Local 20 I I 
Proposal- Article 18 

December 16,2014 

.(Al The parties specifically agree that the attendance and leave provisions as contained in 
Rule 60L-34, Florida Administrative Code, including the accrual, usage, and payment of sick 
and annual leave upon separation from Career Service employment shall apply t o all employees. 

(8} Employees shall not be required to use special compensatory leave prior to the use of 
annual leave and/or regular compensatory leave. Employees shall not be required to use special 
compensatorY leave. or any other type of leave besides annual leave, for activities conducted 
pursuant to Section 2 below. 

SECTION 2 -Negotiation Committee 

(/\)The Union may designate cenain employees within this unit to serve as its Negotiation 
Committee, and such employees will be granted administrati ve leave to attend negotiating sess ions 
with the state. An employee serving on the Negotiation Committee shall also be granted a maximum 
of eight (8) hours administrative leave to attend a negot iation preparatory meeting to be held the 
ca lendar day immediately preceding each scheduled negotiation session , provided that the 
negotiation preparatory meeting is held on what wou ld otherwise be the employee's normal workday. 
No employee shall be credited with more than the number of hours in the employee's regular 
workday for any day the employee is in negotiations. The total number of hours. including the hours 
spent in negotiati011 preparatory meetings. paid al l employees on t·he Union' s Negotiation Committee 
shalltH)t exceed one thousand ( 1 000) hours. The time in attendance at such preparatory meetings and 
negotiating sess ions shall not be counted as hours worked for the purpose of comput ing 
compensa tory time or overtime. The agency shall not reimburse the employee for travel , meal s. 
lodging. or any el'l.pense inc urred in connection with attendance at preparatory meetings or 
negot iating sessions. 

(B) No more than two (2) employees shall be selected li·orn the same work unit at any one 
time, nor shall the selection of any employee unduly hamper the operations of the work unit. 

SECTI ON 3 -Union Activities 

Employees shall have the right to request leave wilhout pay. annual. or compensato1y leave 
for the pwvose of attending Union conventions. conferences, and meetings. When such requests 
cannot bt! granted. th~ supervisor shall prov ide such denial in writing. 



Article 24 

Teamsters Local 20 I I 
Proposal- Article 24 - Status Quo 

December 16, 2014 

ON-CALL ASSIGNMENT AND CALL-BACK 

SECTION 1- On-Call 

"On-call" assignment shall be as defined in Rule 60L-32, Florida Administrative Code. 

SECTION 2 -On-Call Fee 

(A) When approved as provided herein. an employee who is required to be on-ca ll shall be 
compensated by payment of a fee in an amount of one dollar ($1.00) per hour for each hour such 
employee is required to be on-call. I f an on-ca ll period Is less than one (I) hour, the time while on
ca ll will be rounded to the nearest 1/4 hour aod tbe employee "vii i be paid twenty-five cents ($0.25) 
lo r each one-fourth ( 1/4) hour of on-call assignment. 

(8) An employee who is required to be on-ca ll on a Saturday. Sunday. or holiday as listed in 
section I I 0. I 17. Florida Statutes. will be compensated by payment of a fee in an amount equal to 
one-fourth (1 /4) ofthe statewide minimum for the employee's class or at the rate spec itied in the 
above paragraph. whichever is greater. for each eight (8) hour period such employee is t·equlred to be 
available. 

SECTION 3- Call-Back 

(A ) When an employee who has been placed on-ca ll in accordance with Sect ion I above. is 
ca lled back to the work location to perform assigned duties. the employee sha ll be credited ~or actual 
time worked. or a minimum of two hours whichever is greater. If the officer in charge determines the 
officer is no longer needed, the officer will be given the option of leaving or working up to three 
hours. The rate of compensation shall be in accordance with the Rules of the State Personnel System. 

(B) For t~mployees ass igned GPS (Global Positioning System) mon itoring duties. rime spent 
waiting from an initial call of a GPS violation lllltil the GPS violation has been cleared will be 
cons idered time worked, up to a maximum of 15 minutes to r each separate incident. While the 
statewide average to clear a call is 12 minutes. occasionally a call may take longer than 15 minutes tn 
clea r. Should this situation occur, the employee may request through their chain of command that the 
add itional wa iting time be considered time worked. Such req uests shall be considered on a case-by
case basis. This wait time will be counted toward any overtime calculat ion. During the term of the 
contract the parties agree to meet and discuss GPS monitoring dut·ies if the Union has any concerns 
with the program. 



Article 25 
WAGES 

SECTION 1 - General Pay Previsiens Parity of Pav 

Teamsters Local 20 II 
Proposal - Article 25 

October 15,20 14 

(A) Pay shall ae ifl aeeordaaee 'tYith the f' iseal Year 2014 2015 General AJ3j3FOJ3riations 
A*--Pursuantto Florida Statute§ 9-t-L023. the Department ofC'orrectinns (·'DOC") shall 
develop a comprehensive correctional master plan. As indicated b\ § 944.01 3(2 ). f.S .. the 
master plan sh<~ll project the need~ for the slate ~orrectional system ror the comin!!. 5-vear period 
and shall be updated annuallv and submilled to the Governor's office and the Le!!islature at the 
same time the department submits its legislative budget request as provided in chapter 2 16, 

(I) Sec! ion 944.023(4)(1!). 1- .S. requires the DOC to include in the cnmprehcnsiH: 
~:orrectionul master plan. a plan reflectinll pari tv of pa) or cornp:-1rable economic benefits 
ror correctional otlicers wi th that of lav. enforcement orti<;crs in thi s state. and nn 
assessment or projected impacts on turnover rnLe::. within the department. 

(2) fhe DOC hereb-., agrees to comply with its obligations under§ 944.tJ'3(4l(~). 
F.S. Lfthe OepartmentofCorrections fails to meet its obligations under* 944.023(4)(g). 
I' .S .. tht: Union mav bvpass the Oral Discussion. Step I. and Step 2 or the grievance 
process and file a grievance dirccl lv at Step 3 under Article 6. Section 3([)(4) of thi s 
/\urcemcnt. If the !!ricvancc is not resolved at tcp 3. the Union shall ha,·e the ability to 
proceed Lo Grie,•anc:e Mediation and/or Arbitration pursuant to Article 6. Section 3( [)( 5) 
and (6) of this A!!reemenl. 

(B) Inereases to ease rate of13ay aAd salary additives shall ae in accordanee witl=t state law 
and the f' iseal Year2014 2015 General Af}f}FOf}riatioAsAet. In fiscal Year 2013-701+. FDLt. 
certilied o!'ncers in this ban!.ninine. unit did not receive an incrcast.: to th<;ir basl' rat~ of pnv. 
whereas FDLE certified officers outside of this bargaining unit with lcs~ than 5 total combined 
\Cars of state service rece ived a \\age increase of3% and those with 5 or nwre vears total 
combined vears of state service received a 5% v.age increase. In th<: interest of achie,·inu. ~realer 

parit\ uf pay. reducinl!. attrition. anJ retaining quality personnel, all officers in this bargainin!! 
unit" ith tess than 5 lotal combined vears of tate . crvicc in tine or more of the classiti~:ations 
listed in Appendix 1\ of thi s Agreement shall receive a pav adjustment of 3.0 percent on each 
1-!mplovee· s June 30.2015 base rate ofpav. effective Julv I. '015. /\ II officers in thi s bargaining 
unit with 5 or more years total ~ombinl:d vt:ars or state se rvice in anv one or more of the 
cla~sifications listed in Apr-endix 1\ of this Agreement of stale service !)hall receive a pa' 
::tdjustment of 5.0 percent on each employee's June 30. 2015 base rate of pa\. effective July I. 
2015. 

(C) /\gain. in Fiscal Year 20 14-2015. FDLE certified officer::. in this bargain in!! un it did 
not recei' e a wage increase to their base rate of pav. whereas FDLE certified officers outside of 
thi~ bargain in~ unit received an unqualifleJ 5% wa!.!e incrcnsc to their ba:-c !'ate or pav. In the 
interest of achievinu ureater paril\ of pay. reducing attrition. and retaining quality personneL all 
offiters in thi~ bargainin lc!. unit shall receive a pav adjuslment or 5.0 percent on each emplovee·s 
.lulv I. 2015 hHSl' rate or pay. eiTcctivc .Julv ? . .,0 15. 



SECTION 2- Other Pay Provisions- Department of Corrections 

Teamsters Local 2011 
Proposal - Article 25 

October 15,2014 

The following provisions shall apply to all appointments of Department of Corrections' 

employees to positions allocated to classifications or broadband levels listed in Appendix A of 

the Agreement, regardless of whether the appointee is a newly-hired employee or currently 

employed in another class series or occupational level in the State Personnel System. The pay 
grades and rates of pay shall be determined in accordance with the Schedule of Salary Ranges of 

the Career Service Pay Plan. An employee receiving an original, promotion, reassignment, 

transfer, or demotion appointment shall have a base rate of pay equal to an amount with in the 

pay range. subject to the following: 

(A) In itial Appointment 

The following shall apply to all employees who are appointed to a position with 
probationary status: 

(1) Persons appointed to a position prior to being certified by the Criminal Justice 
Standards and Training Commission wi ll be employed at a biweekly base rate of pay at 

the estab lished trainee rate 10% be low the minimum for the class or broadband level to 
which the appointment is made. 

(2) Upon being certified by the Criminal Justice Standards and Training 
Commission. the employee shall be placed at the minimum of the appropriate pay grade 

for the class or broadband level to which appointed, effective the date of certification. 

Appointments above the minimum may be approved by the Agency Head or designee. 

(3) Persons holding a current Certificate of Completion for basic recruit training 
issued by the Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission at the time of 

appointment will have their biweekly base rate of pay established at the minimum of the 
pay grade for the class or broadband level to which the appointment is made. 

(4) The probationary period shall be 12 months for any employee appointed to a 
position with probationary status. 

(5) Time spent as a trainee prior to receiving a Certification of Completion shall 
not be counted toward completion of the probationary period. 

(£3) Pay upon Promotion Appointment 

When promoted the employee shall receive a minimum offive percent (5%) above the 
employee's base rate of pay in the lower class or broadband level, contingent upon funds being 

available, or to the minimum of the higher pay grade, whichever is greater at the time of 



Teamsters Local 20 II 
Proposal - Article 25 

October 15,2014 

promotion. As an exception, when the employee is demoted and subsequently promoted back to 

the former classification or broadband level, or to a classification assigned to the same 

broadband level in the Security Services Uni t, within the succeeding 12 months, the employee 

shall receive the same rate of pay upon promotion as was received immediately prior to 

demotion. The Agency Head may, at his discretion. grant the employee up to an additional five 

percent (5%) at the time of promotion. fn no case shall the employee be paid below the minimum 
for the class or broadband level. 

C) Pay upon Demotion Appointment 

When demoted the employee's biweekly base rate of pay in t he lower class or broadband 

level shall be detennined in accordance with the following: 

(1) If the employee is demoted before satisfactori ly completing the probationary 

period for the current position and attaining permanent status, the employee's base rate of 

pay in the lower class/broadband level shall be detennined in the same manner as an 
initial appointment. 

(2) If the employee attained permanent status in a bargaining unit position prior to 

promotion, and is demoted before satisfactorily completing the probationary period for 

the higher class/broadband level, the employee's base rate of pay shall be reduced to the 
amount the employee was being paid when promoted. 

(3) If the employee is demoted after satisfactoril y completing the probationary 

period for the higher class/broadband level, the employee's base rate of pay shall be 
reduced to the amount the employee was being paid when promoted. The employee's pay 

in the lower pay grade shall be at the discretion of the Agency Head or des ignee. 
Norma II y, the employee's base rate of pay will be reduced to the same amount the 

employee was paid when promoted. However, in no case shall the employee's base rate 
of pay in the lower class/broadband level exceed the employee's base rate of pay in the 

higher class/broadband level, nor shall the employee be placed at an amount within the 
lower pay grade which is less than the employee was being paid at the time of the 
promotion. 

SECTION 3- Deployment to a Facility or Area Closed due to Emergency 

In <R:cwdan~;·e v.ith the-nuthorit) provided in section &(ii)(k) t'<~ftlu Fiscal Year...,() II 2015 

Geneml Apprnprinlion•; .'\ct, cContingent on the avai lability of funds and at the Agency Head 's 

discretion, each agency is authorized to grant a temporary special duties pay additive of up to 15 
percent ofthe employee's base rate of pay to each employee temporarily deployed to a faci lity or 
area closed due to emergency conditions from another area of the state that is not closed. 

3 



SECTION 4- Cash Payout of Annual Leave 

Teamsters Local 20 II 
Proposal - Article 25 

October 15, 2014 

Pennanent Career Service employees may be given the option of receiving up to 24 hours 
of unused annual leave each December in the form of a cash payout subject to, and in accordance 
with. section I I 0.2 19(7). Florida Statutes. 

SECTION 5- Performance Pay 

In uecnrdt'lllce ··~ ilh the <Wthorit) rrcn·ided in :;eC£iun 8(5 )(:i) Elf the lo'beal Yettr 20 I 'I I 5 
General ,\ppropriatitlA'i All£. t:md from e.xisting agent::~ resnttree:;. eEach agency is authorized to 
grant merit pay increases based on the employee 's exemplary performance, as evidenced by a 
performance evaluation conducted pursuant to Rule 60L-35, Florida Administrative Code. 

SECTION 6- Savings Sharing Program 

An employee or groups of employees may be eligible for monetary awards for ideas or 
programs that result in a cost saving to the state, pursuant to section 1 I 0. (245( I), Florida 
Statutes. 

SECTION 7- Discretionary Raises 

Contingent on the availability of funds and at the Agency Head's discretion, each agency 
is authorized to grant competitive pay adjustments to address retention, pay inequities, or other 
staffing issues. 



Article 26 

UN lFORM AND INSIGNIA 

Teamsters Local 2011 
Proposal - Article 26 

December 16, 2014 

SECTION 1 - Uniform and Insignia for Correctional Officers and Institutional Security 
Specia lists 

Conectional oflicers and institutional security spec ialists. where applicable, shall receive ~ 
standard issue o f unifonns and uni fo rm accessories. The state shall provide uni forn Is for it s female 
correctiona l officers and institutional security specialists in the appropriate Sizes, designed and cut 
for females. 

SECTION 2 - Uniform Maintenance Allowance for Correctional O fficers and Institutional 
Secur·ity Specia lists 

The state wil l p1·ovide unit correctional officers and institutional security specialists who are 
furnished and required to wear a uniform. a maintenance all owance in the amount of $250.00 
annually. unless laundry and dry cleaning facilities are ava ilable and the service is fumished by the 
agency without cost to the employee; in addition. such COITCctional officers and institutional security 
spet:ia lists shall rece ive a shoe allowance in the amowH of $75.00 annually. 

SECTION 3 - Badges 

(A ) Correctional officers and correctional probation officers shall be issued badges according 
to the fo llowing spec ifications: 

(I) Badges issued to corTectional officers below the rank of lieutenant shall be silver 
metal. black lettering and pre-numbered. These badges shall be worn on the orficers' 
uniforms in a manner consistent with depmtment policy and procedures. 

(2) Badges issued to correctional officers at the rank of lieutenant and above shall be 
gold metal, black lettering and pre-numbered. These badges shall be worn on the officers' 
unifo rms in a manner consistent with depa1tment policy and procedu res. 

(3) Badges issued to cmTectional probation oflicers shall be police size. These badges 
shall be ca rried in badge cases and in accordance with department procedure. 

(B) Correctional oHicers are only authorized to wear issued hadges with the co1Tectional 
oHicer class "A" or "C" uni fo rm. and only \Yh ile perto rm ing official duties. or while in uni fo rm and 
traveling to or returning from their official duty station. 

(C) The use of an issued badge as a credential for personal ptuvoses is prohi bited. 

(.D) Issued badges are considere-d statt: property and. except lo r ret irement under specific 
condit ions or death in the line of duty. are to be returned upon an employee's termination ol' 
employment with the department or removal from a position in the Security Services Unit. Only 
badges. '\'hi<:h are issued by the department. shall be used to conduct officially des ignated duties. 
Employees shall be responsible for reimburs ing the department to r any issued badge which is lost. 

(E) Correctional officers and correct ional probation officers who rcl'ire from the department 



Teamsters Local 20 I I 
Proposal - Article 26 

December 16, 2014 

under honorable conditions from the Florida Retirement System, including retirement under medical 
disability. shall be authorized to retain their issued badge. 

(F) The badge of a correctional officer or a correctional probation ofticer who is killed in the 
line of duty shal l be presented to the employee1s next ofk·in. 

(G) Upon request. correctional officers and cOtTectionaJ probation officers who aJe promoted 
or transferred to other positions may retain their badge if they are in good standing with the 
department and pay the cost of the badge. 

SECTION 4- Class "A" Uniforms 

Employees shall not be required to wear Class '·A" uniforms while on hospital duty. 

SECTION 5 - Lunch box Allowance 

The state acknowledges that bargaining unit employees working in major institutions are now 
being required to cany their lunch to the institution in a clear lunchbox in an effort to protect against 
contraband entering the institution. The state also acknowledges' that acquiring a Junchbox and/or 
replacing a broken lunchbox is an additional cost to the employees. In an effort to offset this cost, 
emplovees shall be pennitted to replace any broken Junchbox at the canteen at no cost to the officer. 
or in the alternative; officers shall be permitted to purchase a commerciallv-available clear lunchbox. 

2 



Correctional Agencies -Attrition (2013) 

State Corrections 
Department of Corrections, Region 1 Jackson 805 

Department of Corrections, Region 2 Bradford 796 

Department of Corrections, Region 3 Orange 858 

Department of Corrections- Office of Inspector General Leon 5 

Florida State Hospital Correctional Staff Gadsden 8 
Florida State Hospital/ Agency for Persons with Disabilities Gadsden 6 

North Florida Evaluation and Treatment Center Alachua 6 

County Corrections 
Escambia County Road Prison Escambia 5 
Jackson County Corrections Facility Jackson 7 

Miami-Dade County Department of Corrections & Rehabilitation Dade 109 
Okaloosa County Department of Corrections Okaloosa 12 

Orange County Corrections Department Orange 79 

Osceola County Corrections Department Osceola 20 
Volusia County Department of Corrections Vol usia 41 

Walton County Department of Corrections Walton 5 

Private Corrections 
Bay Correctiona l Facility Bay 40 
Blackwater River Correctional Facility Santa Rosa 119 
CCA Citrus County Detention Facility Citrus 14 
Florida Civil Commitment Center Desoto 25 
Gadsden Correctional Institution Gadsden 43 

Geo Care/South Florida Evaluation and Treatment Center Dade 6 

Geo Care Treasure Coast Forensic Treatment Center Martin 12 
Graceville Correctional Facility Jackson 56 
Lake City Correctional Facility Columbia 62 
Moore Haven Correctional Facility Glades 46 
South Bay Correctional Facility Palm Beach 65 

Sherlff"s Corrections 
Alachua County Sheriff's Office Alachua 16 
Baker County Sheriff's Office Baker 4 
Bay County Sheriff's Office Bay 14 
Bradford County Sheriff's Office Bradford 2 
Brevard County Sheriff's Office Brevard 20 
Broward County Sheriff's Office Broward 27 

Calhoun County Sheriff's Office Calhoun 2 
Charlotte County Sheriff's Office Charlotte 12 

Clay County Sheriff's Office Clay 8 
Collier County Sheriff's Office Coll ier 14 



Columbia County Sheriff's Office Columbia 1 

Desoto County Sheriffs Office Desoto 7 

Dixie County Sheriffs Office Dixie 4 
Jacksonville Sheriffs Office Duval 66 

Escambia County Sheriff's Office Escambia 21 

Flagler County Sheriff's Office Flagler 8 
Franklin County Sheriff's Office Franklin 1 

Gadsden County Sheriffs Office Gadsden 6 

Gilchrist County Sheriff's Office Gilchrist 1 

Glades County Sheriff's Office Glades 6 

Hamilton County Sheriff's Office Hamilton 2 

Hardee County Sheriffs Office Hardee 3 

Hendry County Sheriff's Office Hendry 3 

Hernando County Sheriff's Office Hernando 5 

Highlands County Sheriff's Office Highlands 7 

Hillsborough County Sheriff's Office Hillsborough 57 

Holmes County Sheriff's Office Holmes 4 

Indian River County Sheriffs Office Indian River 11 
Jefferson County Sheriff's Office Jefferson 1 
Lafayette County Sheriff's Office Lafayette 2 

Lake County Sheriff's Office Lake 5 
Lee County Sheriff's Office Lee 18 
Leon County Sheriff's Office Leon 17 

Levy County Sheriff's Office Levy 1 

Liberty County Sheriff's Office Liberty 3 

Madison County Sheriffs Office Madison 1 
Manatee County Sheriff's Office Manatee 18 
Marion County Sheriff's Office Marion 11 

Martin County Sheriff's Office Martin 6 

Monroe County Sheriff's Office Monroe 13 

Nassau County Sheriff's Office Nassau 3 
Okeechobee County Sheriff's Office Okeechobee 3 
Orange County Sheriff's Office Orange 1 

Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office Palm Beach 15 

Pasco County Sheriff's Office Pasco 23 

Pinellas County Sheriff's Office Pinellas 45 

Polk County Sheriff's Office Polk 18 
Putnam County Sheriff's Office Putnam 9 

Santa Rosa County Sheriffs Office Santa Rosa 7 

Sarasota County Sheriff's Office Sarasota 5 

Seminole County Sheriffs Office Seminole 13 

St. Johns County Sheriff's Office St. Johns 8 
St. Lucie County Sheriff's Office St. Lucie 14 

Sumter County Sheriff's Office Sumter 14 

Suwannee County Sheriff's Office Suwannee 2 

Taylor County Sheriff's Office Taylor 2. 

Union County Sheriff's Office Union 1 



Wakulla County Sheriff's Office 

Washington County Sheriff's Office 

Wakulla 

Washington 

1 

1 



Correctional Agencies - Salary (2013) 
Entry Min Sergeant Min Lieutenant Min Min Salary 

Agency Salary Salary Salary Increase (%) 

State Correct1ons 
Department of Corrections 30,808 32,658 34,927 Not Applicable 

Department of Corrections, Region 1 30,808 32,658 34,927 Not Applicable 
Florida State Hospital Correctional Staff 30,808 32,658 34,927 Not Applicable 
Florida State Hospital/ Agency for Persons With Disabilities 30,808 32,658 34,927 Not Applicable 
North Florida Evaluation and Treatment Center 32,208 32,657 34,927 Not Applicable 

County Corrections 
Alachua County Department of Court Services 30,728 X X Not Applicable 
Escambia County Road Prison 34,590 40,352 49,420 Not Applicable 
Gulf County Jail 27,040 X X Not Applicable 
Jackson County Correctional Facility 26,463 28,921 30,685 Not Applicable 
Miami Dade County Department of Corrections & Rehabilitation 

Department 36,194 72,661 84,384 5 
Okaloosa County Department of Corrections 33,634 35,992 40,426 Not Applicable 

Orange County Corrections Department 34,341 44,533 53,498 Not Applicable 
Osceola County Corrections Department 38,521 51,625 56,908 Not Applicable 
Vol usia County Department of Corrections 34,490 39,105 48,973 Not Applicable 
Walton County Department of Corrections 34,530 43,562 52,000 1 

Private Corrections 
Bay Correctional Facility 29,120 X X Not Applicable 

Blackwater River Correctional Facility 14 16 19 Not Applicable 
CCA Citrus County Detention Facility 31,168 35,859 40,700 Not Applicable 
Florida Civil Commitment Center 29,099 X 43,650 Not Applicable 

Gadsden Correctional Institution 27,040 29,993 X Not Applicable 
Geo Care Treasure Coast Forensic Treatment Center 36,000 0 0 Not Applicable 

Geo Care/South Florida Evaluation and Treatment Center 31,000 41,000 41,000 Not Applicable 

Graceville Correctional Facility 30,056 32,640 35,700 Not Applicable 

Lake City Correctional Facility 29,474 38,257 40,200 Not Applicable 



Moore Haven Correctional Facility 30,160 35,500 40,000 2 
South Bay Correctional Facility 30,056 34,320 42,000 3 

Sheriff's Corrections 
Alachua County Sheriff1s Office 33,862 47,213 61,963 Not Applicable 
Baker County Sheriff's Office 32,034 40,675 46,755 Not Applicable 
Bay County Sheriff's Office 30,000 40,000 45,000 Not Applicable 
Bradford County Sheriff's Office 28,000 30,500 37,000 Not Applicable 
Brevard County Sheriff's Office 36,004 52,289 61,154 Not Applicable 
Broward County Sheriff's Office 41,474 50,361 52,577 Not Applicable 
Charlotte County Sheriff's Office 39,520 51,134 68,555 Not Applicable 
Clay County Sheriff's Office 34,650 46,974 54,827 Not Applicable 
Collier County Sheriff1s Office 41,645 52,097 81,809 Not Applicable 
Columbia County Sheriff's Office 30,000 38,500 43,000 Not Applicable 
Desoto County Sheriff's Office 33,469 40,021 51,775 Not Applicable 
Dixie County Sheriff's Office 29,250 30,500 38,000 Not Applicable 
Escambia County Sheriff's Office 33,882 43,187 50,797 Not Applicable 
Flagler County Sheriff's Office 33,012 40,439 73,000 Not Applicable 
Franklin County Sheriff's Office 3,000 30,500 31,000 Not Applicable 
Gadsden County Sheriff's Office 30,000 40,628 45,000 Not Applicable 
Gilchrist County Sheriff's Office 30,000 32,000 40,000 Not Applicable 
Glades County Sheriff's Office 36,256 44,554 50,145 Not Applicable 
Hamilton County Sheriff's Office 20,000 X X Not Applicable 
Hardee County Sheriff's Office 33,009 35,509 42,494 Not Applicable 
Hendry County Sheriff's Office 36,000 42,650 51,000 Not Applicable 
Hernando County Sheriff's Office 39,401 55,840 78,107 Not Applicable 
Highlands County Sheriff 's Office 31,796 51,406 60,126 Not Applicable 
Hillsborough County Sheriff's Office 44,335 70,456 83,407 1 
Holmes County Sheriff's Office 22,500 23,500 X Not Applicable 
Indian River County Sheriff's Office 38,950 X X Not Applicable 
Jackson County Sheriff's Office 28,000 29,120 30,120 2.5 
Jacksonville Sheriff's Office 31,464 45,060 52,944 Not Applicable 
Jefferson County Sheriff's Office 25,000 X X Not Applicable 
Lafayette County Sheriff's Office 26,000 X X Not Applicable 



Lake County Sheriff's Office 35,485 39,034 42,936 Not Applicable 
Lee County Sheriff's Office 35,294 50,000 65,000 Not Applicable 
Leon County Sheriff's Office 35,874 47,070 57,497 Not Applicable 
Levy County Sheriff's Office 28,840 35,500 47,000 Not Applicable 
Liberty County Sheriff's Office 30,000 35,000 40,000 0 
Madison County Sheriff's Office 28,840 31,594 34,611 Not Applicable 
Manatee County Sheriff's Office 40,785 66,901 81,368 Not Applicable 
Marion County Sheriff's Office 28,521 44,109 50,441 Not Applicable 
Martin County Sheriff's Office 42,120 62,462 90,459 Not Applicable 
Monroe County Sheriff's Office 43,050 55,497 55,808 Not Applicable 
Nassau County Sheriff's Office 32,000 45,000 56,000 Not Applicable 
Okeechobee County Sheriff's Office 34,000 45,000 52,000 Not Applicable 
Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office 47,220 73,440 95,676 4.5 
Pasco County Sheriff's Office 39,581 54,846 74,410 Not Applicable 
Pinellas County Sheriff's Office 41,284 62,285 75,780 Not Applicable 
Polk County Sheriff's Office 38,506 56,941 66,552 3.5 
Putnam County Sheriff's Office 29,120 36,000 50,000 Not Applicable 
Santa Rosa County Sheriff's Office 30,560 36,380 43,426 Not Applicable 
Sarasota County Sheriff's Office 38,000 60,000 68,257 3 
Seminole County Sheriff's Office 36,089 45,077 59,113 3 
St. Johns County Sheriffs Office 36,050 55,485 67,738 Not Applicable 
St. Lucie County Sheriff's Office 38,722 66,688 78,141 Not Applicable 
Sumter County Sheriffs Office 36,167 65,367 78,449 Not Applicable 
Suwannee County Sheriff's Office 30,000 34,751 36,489 Not Applicable 
Taylor County Sheriffs Office 32,305 33,000 33,000 Not Applicable 
Union County Sheriff's Office 26,000 28,000 36,500 Not Applicable 
Wakulla County Sheriff's Office 29,000 33,000 37,000 Not Applicable 
Walton County Sheriff's Office 15 40,812 44,459 0 
Washington County Sheriff's Office 28,538 34,115 44,620 Not Applicable 



Statutes & Constitution :View Statutes· Online Sunshine http:/'www.leg.stale. O.us/Statuteslindex.cfin? App _mode-=Di ·play_ Sta ... 

I of2 

The 2014 Florida Statutes 

~ 
LABOR 

Select Year: 2014 Go 

Q1a.Qter ~47 

LABOR ORGANIZATIONS 

447.203 Deffnltlons.-As used In this p~n: 

(1) "Commission'' means the Public Employees Relations Commission created by S-1.'!7.205. 
(2) ''Public employer" or "employer" me11ns the state or any county, munidpal1ty, or special district 04' any subdi-.ision or agency thereof which the 

commlssio'l determines has sufficfent legal distinctiveness property to carry out the functions or a public employer. With respec.r to all public employees 
determined by the commission as properly belonaing to a statewide baraainlng unit composed of State Career Service System employees Of Selected 

Proresslona: Sel'llce employees, the Governor shall be deemed to be the pubhc employer; and the Board of GovernOfs of the State University System, or 

the board's designee, shall be deemed to be the public employer wah respect to all public employees of each consti~uerlt nate university. The board of 
trustees of a community college shall be deemed to be tt>e public employer With respect to all employees of the community college. The district schonl 
board shall be deemed to be the publiC employer with respect to e~lt employe~s of the school district. The Soard of Trustees of the Ronda Schoo( for the 
Deaf and the Blind shall be deemed to be the public employer With respect to the academiC and ac.adem1c administrative personnel of the florida School 
for the Deaf and the Blind. The Governor shall be deemed to be the public employer with respect to all employees in the Correctional Education Program 
of the Department of Correctioos established pursuanl to s. 94.4.801 . 

(J) "Public employee" means any person employed by a pubhc employer except: 

(a} Those perSO<lS appointed by the Governor or elected by the people, agency heads, and members of boards and commissions. 
(b) Those persons holding positions by appointment o~ employment in the organized mltltla. 

(c) ThCY..e Individuals acttng as negotiating representatives for employer authorities. 
(d) Those persons who are designated by the commission as managerial or confidential employees pursuant to criteria conta ined herein. 
(e) Those persons holding positions of employment with the Florida Legislature. 
(f) Those person$ who have been convicted of a cnme and are inn1a1es confined to institutions within the state. 

(g) Those persons appointed to Inspection positions in federal/state fruit and vegetable inspection serv1ce whose conditions of appointment are 

~ffected by the following: 
1. Federal license requirement. 
1. federal autonomy regarding investigation and disciplining of appointees, 

J. frequent tran~fers duP to harvesting cond1 tions. 
I h) Those persons employed by the Public Employees Relations Commlsston. 
(i) Those persor1s enrolled a"s undergraduate students 1n a state university who perform part-time wor~ for the Slate university. 
(4) "Managerial employees" are those employees who: 

(a) Perform jobs that are not of a ro•Jtlne, clerical, or ministerial <\ature and require the exercise of independent judgment in the performance of 
such jobs and to whom one or more of the following applies: 

1. They formulate or assiSt in formulating policies ..tticl\ are applicllble to bargaining unit empl~es. 

2. ThPy may reasonably be required on behc!lf of ttle employer to assist tn the preparation for the conduct of collective ba(iainlng negotiations. 
3. They have a role in the adminiStration of a!lreements resulting from collective bargaining negotiations. 
•L They have a Sl&nificant role in personnel administration. 
5. They nave a significant role in employee relanons. 
b. They are included in the def1nitlon of administrative personnel contained ins. 1012 ,01 13). 

7. They have a significant role in the preparation or admmistration of budgets for any public agency or mstitution or subdivision tl"lereo' . 
(b) Serve as pohce chiefs, fire Chtefs. or directors or public safety of any pollee , lire, Of public safety deparurent . Other police o'ficers, as defined In 

s 943.10(1), and firefighters, as de fined ins. ~. may be determined by tre commission to be mana~al employees ot such departments. In 
making such determtnations. the commission shall consider, in addition to the criteria established in paragraph (a), thl' paramilitary organtzational 

structure of the department involved. 

However, in determining whe ther an lnd1vidual Is a managerial employee pursuant to paragraph (a) or paragraph (b), above, the commission may consider 
historic relationships of the employee to the public employer and to coemptoyees. 

(51 "Confidential employees" are persons who act in a confidential capacity to assist or aid managerial employees as defined in subsection (4). 
(b) "Strike" means tne concerted failure of employees to report for duty; tile concerted ab~nce of employees from their pos1t1ons: the coocerted 

stoppage or work by employees; the concerted subm•sslon or resigna tiOns by employees; the concerted abstinence in whole or 1n part by any group of 
employees from the full and faithful performance of the duties of employment Wlth a public employer for the purpose of Inducing, lnfluooang, 
condonln~ or coercing a change 'n the terms and conditions of employment or the rights, priVileges, or obhgat1ons of public employment, or participating 
'" a deliberate and concerted course of conduct which adVersely affects the ser-.1ces of the public employer; the cot1certed failure of employees to report 
for work after the e.>Cpira tion oi a collectivp bargaining agreement; and picketing in furtherance of a work stoppage. The term "strike" shall also mean 
any overt preparatton, including, but not limited to, the establishment of strike funds with regard to the above ·listed activ!lies. 

(7) ''Strike funds" are any appropriatiOtls by an employPe organization which are established to directly or indirectly aid any employee or employe£' 
orgamzatcy~ to partu:lpate in a strike in the state. 

(8) "Bargaining unit" means eilher that unit determined by the commission, that unit determined through local regulations promulgated pursuant to 
s. 4<7.60) , or that un•t deterrnllled by the public employer and the public employee orgamzaoon and approved by the comm1sslon to be approprlate for 
the purposes of collect ive bargaining. However, no bargainmg umt shall be defined as appropriate which Includes employees of two employers that are 
not departments or dtvtslons of the state, a county, a munictpality, or other political entity. 

(9) "Chief eiecutive olficet" for thP state shall mean the Governor and for other public employers shaH mean the person, whether elected or 

211 1/2015 11:56 PM 



Statutes & Constitution ·View Statutes; Online Sunshine http://www.leg.state.ll.us/Statutes/index.efm? App _mode= D1splay _ Sta ... 

2 of2 

appointed, who Is responsible lD the lt>glslatlve body of the public employer for the administration of the governmEntal affa•rs of the public employer. 

(10) "Legislative body" means the State Legislature, the board of county commissioners. the! district school board, the governini body of a 

municipality, or the govern•ng body nf an instrun1enratity or unit of government hav•ng authoritY to appropriate funds and establish policy governing the 
terms and conditions of employment and which, as the case may be, is the appropriate leglslatllle body for the baraaining unit. For purposes of s. 

«7 .403, the Board or Governors or the State Umversity System, or the board's des1gnee, shall be deemed to be the legisiauve body w.tf> respea to all 

employees of each constituent state umversfty. For purposes of s. 447.403 the board of trustees of a commumty cOllege shall be deemed tO be the 

legi~atlve body with respect to all employees of tbe community college. 

p 11 "Employee Qlianization" or "organization" means any labor organization, union, association, fraternal order, occupational or professional 

society, or group , however organized or constituted, which represents, or seeks to represent> ~ny public employee or !lrOUil of publiC employees 

concerning any matlefS relating to their employment relatiOnShip with a public employer. 

( 121 "BarJ.sinini agent ·• means the employee organization which has been cer!lfled by the comminion as representing the employees in the 

bargainmg Ullft, as poovided 1n s. 447.307, oc 1ts representatiVe. 

(131 "Profeu1onal employee·• means: 

Ia) Ally employee engaged in work in any two or moce of the foUowlng c~tegories: 

1. Work predominantly Intellectual and varied In character as opposed to routine mental> mMilal, mechanical, or physlc;~t work: 

2. Wor'l< mvolving the consistent exercise of discretion and judgment in its performance; 

3. Work or such a character that the output produced or the resull accomplished cannot be standardized ln relation to a given period oi time; and 

4. WOfk requiring advanced knowledge in a field of science or learning customanty acquired by a prolonged course of special1zed intellectual 

lnstrucrion and study In an Institution of higher learmng or a hospital, as distinguished from a general academic education, an apprenticest'lip, or training 

In the performance of routfne mental or physiCal processes. 

(b) Any employP.e who: 

1. Has completed the course or spec ialized intellectual inst ruction and study described in subpara.graph 4. of paragraph (a); and 

2. Is performing related work under superviSion Of a professional person to qualify to become a profess1onal employee as defined in paragraph (a). 

(14) "Collective bargaining" means the performance of the mutual obligationl of the public employer and the barga ining agent oi the employee 

or!l-lnization to meet at reasonable times, to negotiate in good faith, and to execute a vJ!itten contract with respect to agreements reached concerning 
the terms and conditions of employment, except that neither party shall be compelled to agree to a proposal or be required to make a concesSion unless 

otherwise provoded In this part . 

( 15) "Membership dues deduction" means the practice ol a public employer of deducting dti!.'S and unllorm assessments from the salary or wages of a 

public employee. Such term atso means the pract•ce of~ public employer of transrmtlinB the sums so deducted to such employee organization . 
( 16) "Clllfl serv1ce" means any career, ciVil, or merit system used by any pub.IC employer. 

(171 "Good faith bargamfng" shall mean, but not be limited to, the willmgness of both parties to meet at reasonable times and places, as mutually 

agreed upan, m order to discuss issues which are proper subjects of barga ining , With the intent of reachmg a common a"ord. It sh.11l inctude an 

obhgatlon for both parties to partiCipate act ively tn the negotlatlons with an open mind and a sincere desire, as well as makmg a smcere effort, to 

resolve differences and come to an agreement. In determming whether a party failed to b3rgaln 10 good fa1th, the commission shall cons•der the total 

conduct of the parties during ne!loliations as well as the spetific incidents of alleged bad faith. InCidents indicative ol bad faith shall Include, but not be 

limited to, the follovling occurrences: 

(a) failure to meet at reasonable times and places with representatives of the other party lor the purpose of negotiations. 

(b) Placing unreaso(lable restrictions on the o ther party as a prerequisite to meeting. 

(cl Failure to discuss bargainable issues . 

(d) Refusmg, upon reasonable written request, to provide public information, excluding work products as definPd in s. ~7 .f/05. 

(e) Refusing to negotiate betause of an unwanted person on the opposing negotiating team. 
(f) Negotiating directly with employees rather than With their certified b~rgalnlng agent. 

(g) Refusing to reduce a total agreement to writing. 

( 18) "Student representatiV'e" means the representative selected by each community college or university student government assodatton. Each 

representative may be present at all negotiating sessions that take place between the appropriate publfc employer and an exclusive bargaining agent. 

The representative must be enrolled as a student with at least 8 credit hours In the respective community college or umverslty during his or ller term as 

student representatiVe. 
HI >tory. •· J, ch. H · tOO; • · 1, ch. 76·19; • 1, ch. 76·114; •· 1, ch . 76 ,269; s . 1, ell . n- 11~: •· b, ch. n-J.<l; s. 1, ell. 79•100; • · 118, cit. 79·222: s. 2, <h. a t · lOS: " · 10. 11, q,. 

tiS·2~1; s. 12, ch. 85·318: s. S. <h. 86· US; s JS, c~. 89·526; s. 12, ell. 90-:165; s, 21, <h. 91 · 55; t. U, ch. 'n ·169; r. I, ell. 9~·89; s. U , dl. 95·l1S; s 152. ell. 97 t03; s. 1, ch. 200Qo.IS6; 
s. 1006. ch 200!387; •· S!, ch. 2007·217; • 140. ell 2011"183 . 

2/11/201511 :56PM 



Statutes & Constitution :View Statutes : Online Sunshine ht1p://www.leg.state.fL us/Statutes/index .cfm? A pp _ mode=D1splay _ Sta .. 

of I 

The 2014 Florida Statutes 

~ 
LABOR 

Select Year; 2014 Go 

Chapter 447 
LABOR ORGANJZATIONS 

ytew Entire Ch~g,t~r 

44 7.40 1 Grievance procedures.- Each pUblic employer and bargaining agent shall negotiate a grievance procedure to be used for the settlement 
of disputes betweffl employer and employee. or aroup ol employees, lnvolvi~ the Interpretation or application or a collective barsalnin!! agreement. 
Such grievance procedure shall have as rts tennmat step a final and binding dasposltlon by an lmpaniat neUtral, mutually selected by the parties; 
however, when the Issue under appeal Is an all~a tion or abuse, abandonme nt, or neglect by an employee und!.'r s. 39.201 or s. 415.1034, the grievance 
may not be decided until the abuse, abandonme'1t, or neglect of a chitd has been judicially determined. However, an arbiter or other neutral ~hall not 
have the power to add to, subtract from, modify, or alter the terms of a collective bargaining agreement. If an employee organi2atl01l ls certified as the 

barQalnlng ajent of a unit , the grievance procedure then in exastence may be the subject of collective bars,aining , and any agreement wh1ch is reached 
shalt supersede the previously existing procedllro. All public employees shall have the right to a fair and equitable grievance procedure administered 
withOut regard to membership or nonmembership In any organization, except that certified emp(oyee orga11i:tations shall not be required to process 
grievances for employees who are not members of the organlzataon. II career Sefl!lce employee shall have the opt1on of utflizlng the civil sef'/ice appeal 
procedureJ an unfair labor practice procedure, or a grievance procedure established under this seClion, but such employee as precluded from availing 
himself or herself to more than ooe ol these procedurl5. 

Hlilory.- " J. C11 74·100; s. 1. Cl\. 74·378. <. 14. ch. n ·JA); s 38, di. ~7·1JSj • · 11, ch. 88 ·290; s. )2, <h. 91 S7; s US, ell. 95-418; 1 . 1S6, en. '17·10); s. IS4, ell. 98·403; >. 101 , ell. 

2000·349. 

CO!lY'fjhl ¢' 19'15·2015 The Florida Legislature • POOcv Statcmtm • ~ 

2/ 11/20 l5 11:54 PM 


